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Dear business

colleagues,

shareholders, partners,

Allow me to present you with the Annual Report
of UJV Rez, a. s., for 2024. An important period
for our company, that year was marked by
preparations of major projects of the Czech
nuclear power sector and the strategic
development of our professional capacities. This
Annual Report provides not only a summary of our
financial results and details of the fulfiiment of our
objectives, but also an overview of significant
events and activities that had an impact on the
path that our company took in the past year.

It is with pleasure to inform that we have met
our owners’ expectations, achieving very good
results in finance, safety, quality and professional
development alike. Special emphasis was put on
strengthening our safety culture, which we
perceive to be the foundation of our activities. In
the area of information security, our cooperation
within CEZ Group was broadened, and our
capacities in fire protection were reinforced.
Throughout the year, we worked closely with the
State Office for Nuclear Safety in all areas of its
regulatory activities, and we prepared documents
and proposals to accomplish the utmost safety of
our work.

We in UJV Rez understand that our employees
constitute our most valuable asset. Accordingly,
we have systematically created an environment
that supports their professional growth and
development. Thanks to our employees’ expertise
and professionalism, we rank among the leading
companies not only in the Czech Republic but also
internationally. Our employees have made it
possible for our company to implement projects
with international reach successfully, both in the
area of nuclear research and projects involving
the development of innovation technologies.

The year 2024 saw us continue to invest in the
development of our colleagues, both in terms of
their technical expertise and soft skills, and we are
therefore able to act flexibly upon technological
trends and market needs. UJV Rez is a stable and
dynamic employer who provides its employees
not only with professional development
opportunities but also a chance to participate in
projects of global significance.

In 2024 we cooperated closely on the
preparation of projects for the construction of new
nuclear power sources, including small modular
reactors. After the preferred supplier for Unit 5 for
the Dukovany Nuclear Power Plant was selected,
work was commenced on our engineering and
technical support of Elektrarna Dukovany Il, where
we were involved in the preparation of documents
for the building permit under the Building Act and
documents for the building permit under the Atomic
Act. We have been engaged in close collaboration
with the CEZ team on the preparation of the
construction of a Rolls-Royce small modular
reactor in the Czech Republic, both in terms of
siting and licensing and in the assessment of
design safety. In connection with the recruitment of
employees for new projects with a focus on nuclear
sources, we opened an establishment in Ostrava
and extended capacities of the head office of
ENERGOPROJEKT PRAHA (EGP) division in
Prague. Importantly, our activities included the
arrangement for designer’s supervision for the
completion of Unit 4 of the Mochovce Nuclear
Power Plant, where EGP division works as the
general designer for Slovenské elektrarne, a.s.

A noteworthy part of our work in 2024 consisted
in the support of the operations of Dukovany and
Temelin Nuclear Power Plants. We accomplished
the requirements for the smooth execution of the
planned work in shutdowns of the above nuclear
power plants. All tasks were completed
successfully within the Complex Services for
Dukovany and Temelin, with a focus on the
management of component and system life cycle,
safety assessment and operational reliability. In the
process, an effective use was made of
experimental infrastructure of UJV Group. We
continued to implement other major contracts in the
support for the safe long-term operation of CEZ
nuclear power plants — this chiefly concerned the
programmes of cable and valve ageing
management and the assessment of thermal
fatigue in safety-critical systems and components.
We provided further support for the operation of
nuclear power plants, especially as regards the
introduction of fuel from a new supplier, in a form
of safety analyses. Computational tools were:
prepared and qualified to support the operations of:
nuclear power plants, which tools will be employed:
intensively in the upcoming vyears also for:
independent safety assessments required for:
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Radioactive waste storage considered, our work
in 2024 centred around the experimental and
analytical safety assessment of the concept of the
Deep Repository for Radioactive Waste Repository
Authority (SURAO). The aforesaid analyses will
continue in 2025.

As an important part of our business activities,
and what is more, with a noteworthy overlap into
corporate social responsibility, we have been
engaged in the production of radiopharmaceuticals,
in particular preparations for positron emission
tomography (PET). In observance of demanding
requirements for high quality and reliability of
production and distribution, we supplied PET
radiopharmaceuticals to all Czech hospitals
furnished with adequate technologies. Supplies to
hospitals in the Slovak Republic were also regularly
backed up. In 2024, we successfully obtained the
registration of a new diagnostic product,
Fluorodopa (18F) UJV, which instantly became one
of the regularly applied radiopharmaceuticals at
nuclear medicine departments. Throughout the
past year, the PET Centre Brno hosted the testing
of the complex analytical device QC1 Trasis, which
boasts a potential to revolutionise the character of
output controls of radiopharmaceuticals. Last but
not least, we also began to cooperate with
international suppliers of radiopharmaceuticals.

Last year, our company continued to develop
renewable technologies, especially hydrogen
technologies, and thanks to current projects, our
company has moved in the direction of
comprehensive services for the implementation of
hydrogen technology into practice. Today, our
competences range from development, to design,
permitting procedure and engineering to our own
construction of facilities and turnkey deliveries.
During 2024, we launched research projects with a
focus on verification of Power-to-X technology in
real life of wastewater treatment plants. In addition,
a prototype for an independent power source with
a Power-box hydrogen fuel cell for
commercialisation has been under preparation.

In the area of international cooperation, our
operation in 2024 especially consisted in nuclear

'safety projects, primarily with the International
:Atomic Energy Agency (IAEA) and the OECD
‘Nuclear Energy Agency. We continued to work on
‘our projects for regulatory authorities and industry
‘in Slovakia, Japan and Egypt.
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Our activities in the preparation of a robust
regulatory environment for the construction
and operation of nuclear power plants for a
regulatory authority in Saudi Arabia scored
success. Our significant contribution to energy
safety of Ukrainian energy sector, ravaged by
war, was the production and supply of a
prestressing tendon for the containment of the
Rivne Nuclear Power Plant. In the area of
international R&D projects, the project
“‘Advanced analysis of pressure-temperature
shocks to ensure long-term operation of
nuclear units,” funded by the EU and
coordinated by UJV ReZ was completed. A
significant achievement was the finalisation of
the Euratom SAFE-G project, with a focus on
the development of gas-cooled fast reactor
technology, and the launch of the follow-up
project TREASURE. The joint successful
project of Research Centre ReZ and UJV Rez,
INCA (In-pile Creep Studies of ATF
Claddings) made it possible for UJV Group to
establish itself in the research and qualification
of new types of nuclear fuel cladding and to
begin to collaborate with Westinghouse,
Framatome and General Atomics, to name
a few.

Our company is a major processor of
institutional radioactive waste. The total of
118.5 m® of RW was processed in 2024 and
345 packaging assemblies were stored at
SURAO locations.

We continued to invest in the maintenance
of our premises and buildings in 2024.
Concepts of real estate management, heat
supply and electromobility were prepared and
approved. We carried on maintaining our
premises, while the year 2024 was also about
repairs and renovation of roofing on several
buildings. The modernisation project of hot
chambers went on to be implemented in 2024.

Our company has employed an integrated
management system, and we successfully
maintained our ISO 9001, ISO 9001, ISO
14001 and I1SO 45001 certification. From the
perspective of our customers, a joint audit was
carried out at UJV Rez by CEZ, a. s., and CEZ
ENERGOSERVIS spol. sr.0., as well as audits
by Slovenské elektrarne, a.s., and Framatome
— SQA-G. All of the above companies
confirmed us as a verified supplier.

WWW.Uujv.cz
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In 2024, we were honoured to welcome a
number of guests, who came to learn about our
work and to discuss the role of an engineering,
research and development organisation within
the development of nuclear power sector and
peaceful use of nuclear energy. We have
particularly appreciated the visit of President of
the Czech Republic, Petr Pavel, which
highlighted the importance of our work for
energy safety of this country.

Dear shareholders, business partners,
colleagues,

The year 2024 marked a period in which we
successfully achieved the objectives set,
significantly strengthening our position on the
market of nuclear engineering, research,
development and innovations. | trust that the
results detailed in this Annual Report confirm
our ability to respond effectively to challenges
of the power sector and to contribute actively to
the safe and sustainable future of the Czech
Republic.

In conclusion, let me extend my thanks to
everyone who has contributed to our success:
our employees for their high expertise,
commitment and responsibility, our business
partners for long-term cooperation and trust,
and of course, you, our shareholders, for your
support and trust in the strategic direction of our
company.

| look forward to our further cooperation and
joint achievements in the upcoming years.

Respectfully,

4

UJV Rez, a. s.

Ing. Martin Ruséak, CSc., MBA
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CEO and Chair of Board of Directors UJV

Rez, a. s.
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Bank connection: Komercni banka, a. s., account no. 1137201/0100
Telephone: +420 266 172 000
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Other members of the Board of Directors of UJV Rez, a. s.

Ing. Tomas Novotny Ing. Patrik Spatzal, MBA
Member of the Board of Directors Member of the Board of Directors
Director of Finance Section Director of Radiopharmaceuticals Division

Ing. Petr Mach Ing. Jan Wandrol

Member of the Board of Directors
(from 01 January 2025)

Director of Integrity and Technical
Engineering Section

Member of the Board of Directors

Director of ENERGOPROJEKT PRAHA
Division

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

UJV Rez, a. s. 13



PROFILE

OF UJV REZ, A. S.,
AND ITS
EXPECTED
DEVELOPMENT


http://www.ujv.cz/

Verejné / POblic
_SUJV

The activities of UJV Rez are primarily geared towards the support of safe and effective operation
of energy sources in the Czech Republic and abroad, designing and providing qualified
engineering support for the construction of new nuclear sources, including small modular reactors
(SMR), as well as comprehensive services in radioactive waste management and the
decommissioning of nuclear installations.

The company is the largest supplier and producer of radiopharmaceuticals on the Czech market.
Annually, the company supplies products for treatment of more than 85% patients by positron
emission tomography (PET) imaging.

In the framework of research and development projects, UJV Rez is also engaged — in addition
to nuclear safety and reliability — in the fuel cycle, research and testing of advanced materials for
power sector and industry, and hydrogen technologies. The company renders research and
engineering support for the Deep Repository Project in the Czech Republic.

UJV Rez is the parent company of UJV Technology Group. It controls four subsidiary business
corporations: Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.o., SKODA PRAHA a.s., Vyzkumny a zku$ebni Ustav
Plzer s.r.o. and RadioMedic s.r.o. UJV Group is a supplier of comprehensive solutions for safety
and reliability of nuclear power sector and provides technical consultancy and services to partners
also in industry and transport. The individual members of UJV Group leverage an extensive
technological infrastructure and are involved in a number of professional platforms at both national
and international levels. UJV Group is a member of CEZ Group.

The company’s development plan until 2030 is underpinned by nine strategic objectives, which
cover the individual areas of business activities and services, development of human resources
and ensuring long-term financial stability. The main objectives for the area of human resources
encompass, among others, the increase in employee engagement and recruitment of qualified
personnel capacities.

Business objectives of UJV ReZ include the following in particular:
» Strengthening capacities for the needs of projects of new nuclear sources and SMRs in the

Czech Republic.

* Development of qualified engineering services for the construction, commission and
optimisation of SMR fleet design.

+ Maintaining and solidifying the position of the key supplier of services for safe and economical
operations and life extension of facilities at CEZ nuclear power plants.

+ Expanding the portfolio of services for nuclear power plant operators abroad.

» Employing know-how in the production of radiopharmaceuticals and the construction of PET
centres to enter new markets.

* Focus on utilising the company’s experience and engineering capacities for contracts in the
areas of production, transport and storage of hydrogen.

All activities and services performed by UJV ReZ are centred around the requirement for high
standards of quality and occupational safety as well as compliance with the rules of the Code of
Ethics and ESG Policy of CEZ Group.

UJV Rez, a. s. 15
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SAFETY AND RELIABILITY OF NUCLEAR POWER PLANTS

Safety analyses, support for licensing of operated NPPs
PSA analysis of NPP operations

Improvement of safety of operated NPPs

Support for licensing of new nuclear sources

Support for preparation of operational documents and emergency regulations, support for staff
training

Radiation safety and emergency preparedness

Reliability analyses of complex technologies, including the management control system and
reliability of human factor

Preparation of methodological procedures, verification and validation of computational
programmes and models

Support for activities of supervisory bodies

SUPPORT FOR ECONOMICAL AND EFFICIENT OPERATIONS OF NUCLEAR
POWER PLANTS
We provide nuclear power plant operators with a number of activities directed at the increase in

efficiency and economy of operations of power units. We have references at the level of the general
contractor for comprehensive projects of power uprates.

Projects of power uprates of nuclear units

Analysis and optimisation of operations of VVER units
Increase in operation reliability

Assessment of the service life of systems and components
Extension of the operating of NPP power units

Development of support tools for efficient operation of NPPs

SUPPORT FOR THE FUEL CYCLE OF NUCLEAR POWER

We extend our support to power plant operators with respect to fuel licensing, during fuel storage and
use in the reactor as well as for the depositing used nuclear fuel in the intermediate storage. We are
also concerned with issues of long-term storage of used nuclear fuel and options of its use in new
generation reactors.

Optimisation of loading patterns: programmes OPTIMAL and LPOpt

Design and safety evaluation of loading patterns: SW ANDREA and CycleKit
Monitoring of the nuclear reactor core and the system SCORPIO-VVER
Monitoring of fuel on the inspection and repair stand

Thermomechanical behaviour of fuel and the nuclear reactor core

Thermohydraulic evaluation of fuel and the nuclear reactor core

ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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* Analyses of criticality and shielding
* The back end of fuel cycle and long-term storage of spent fuel

* Research into advanced fuel cycles.

TECHNICAL SUPPORT FOR THE OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF
POWER SOURCES

Our support rendered to operators of power sources includes a comprehensive complex of
services, ranging from diagnostics and risk-based operational control programmes on site, through
qualification of inspection methods and safety analyses, to umbrella projects of performance and

life cycle improvement. We have strongly profiled in the transfer of international know-how,
especially in the area of non-destructive inspections.

» Performance of operational inspections on power plant sites
» Operational diagnostics of electrically and pneumatically driven valves
* Qualification of new inspection methods and procedures

» Design and manufacture of test assemblies with spark and real defects for the purpose of
qualification tests

» Transfer of know-how and up-to-date knowledge in the area of non-destructive inspections
from the world over (Russia, USA)

* Increase in the performance of power sources.

CONTROLLED AGEING AND LIFETIME ASSESSMENT OF POWER
SOURCES

Investments in power units, especially nuclear power units, can only be evaluated by the
subsequent efficient long-term operation. Accordingly, the process of Plant Life Management —
PLiM entails a very sophisticated system of care for intrinsic technologies of various types. We
are able to apply the procedures, diagnostics and control programmes from nuclear power
industry also to the management of life cycle of installations or production units in other industries.

» Design Bases — supplementation, maintenance and updating of the database of design bases

* Preparation of conclusive documents as per the required normative technical documents
(NTD)

» Evaluation of equipment strength and service life, including predictions of equipment condition
for the determined dominant degradation mechanisms

* Environmental qualification of equipment

« Calculations of equipment response to operating conditions by finite element methods (statics,
heat conduction, fracture mechanics, dynamics including seismicity and rapid events, such as
swings in ruptured piping systems)

*  Modification and development of management programmes (life management programme,
controlled ageing programmes)

» Evaluation of risk estimation caused by pressure-temperature shocks.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

20 WWW.Ujv.CzZ


http://www.ujv.cz/

Verejné / Pﬁglic
SUJVS

« Thermohydraulic analysis for strength analyses
+ Design of supporting database applications

* Preparation of technical and economic studies of power installations — Design and
manufacture of required experimental installations.

STRUCTURAL AND MECHANICAL PROPERTIES OF MATERIALS

Our experience and infrastructure enable us to carry out tests of mechanical properties of
irradiated and non-irradiated materials, damage analyses, environmental qualification of
equipment as well as the assessment of the degree of degradation of structural material properties
in challenging power operations.

+ Operational and laboratory diagnostics of electrically and pneumatically driven valves
* Monitoring of flow-accelerated corrosion (FAC)
» Accredited tests of mechanical properties of irradiated and non-irradiated materials

» Design and implementation of advanced surveillance programmes of reactor pressurised
vessels

+ Development and design of irradiation probes for experimental reactors
» Development of equipment for welding in hot cells by electron beam
» Determination of the lifetime of electrical safety equipment and its components

+ Qualification of equipment and components in terms of aging (thermal, radiation, mechanical,
vibration, wear, fatigue, etc.), including environmental effects

+ Solution and implementation of controlled aging programmes, especially cables
* lIrradiation service through cobalt sources, radiation sterilisation

- Evaluation of radiation and heat resistance of non-metal materials, lifetime of satellite
components

DESIGN AND RELATED ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR NUCLEAR AND
CONVENTIONAL POWER SECTORS

We provide complex all-professional design and pre-design activities, including related
engineering and consultancy services in the area of investment construction of energy

installations. Our partners are offered a comprehensive suite of services supporting their
activities, from feasibility assessment to the execution of investment projects.

» Preparatory project phase — conceptual study, feasibility study, conceptual project
* Tender dossier

*  Documents for zoning or building procedures

* |IPPC documents

+ Environmental assessment/impact documents (EIA)

ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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» Documents for the construction execution (Detail Design)

» Performance of designer supervision — designer’s supervision

* As-built documents

* Project preparation for the construction and commissioning of nuclear power plants
» Studies and projects for modernisation of power sources

» Studies and projects for greening of power sources

» Database design and programming — documents as per the Atomic Act.

RADIOACTIVE WASTE AND DECOMMISSIONING OF NUCLEAR
INSTALLATIONS

Our support rendered to operators of power sources includes a comprehensive complex of
services, ranging from diagnostics and risk-based operational control programmes on site,
through qualification of inspection methods and safety analyses, to umbrella projects of
performance and life cycle improvement. We have strongly profiled in the transfer of international
know-how, especially in the area of non-destructive inspections.

» Performance of operational inspections on power plant sites
» Operational diagnostics of electrically and pneumatically driven valves
* Qualification of new inspection methods and procedures

» Design and manufacture of test assemblies with spark and real defects for the purpose of
qualification tests

» Transfer of know-how and up-to-date knowledge in the area of non-destructive inspections
from the world over (Russia, USA)

* Increase in the performance of power sources.

CONTROLLED AGEING AND LIFETIME ASSESSMENT OF POWER
SOURCES

We are the only company in the Czech Republic to cover the complete chain of services in the
area of radioactive waste management (RW), beginning from its detection and identification
through processing and treatment (disposal) to safe storage. We are qualified for all the activities
on offer, including all required permits of the State Office for Nuclear Safety.

We process and treat for storage more than 90% RW (solid and liquid) generated in this country
in industry, hospital and other facilities. A separate comprehensive area of our services in RW
management is the decommissioning of nuclear installations and sites with ionising radiation
sources.

Since 2007, we have rendered complex services, in the international environment, regarding the
transport of highly enriched nuclear fuel from research reactors to the country of its origin.

» Concepts and expertise — back-end of the fuel cycle.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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* Processing and treatment / disposal of RW.

»  Support to the development and operation of RW and SNF repositories

» Development and testing of solidification and decontamination technologies.
* Decommissioning.

* Transport of spent fuel — conducted from 12 countries and 3 continents.

* Measurement and analyses / Central analytical laboratory.

ACCREDITED LABORATORIES

Our accredited laboratories operate in five areas, covering selected mechanical, physical and
chemical, electric, radiation and radiochemical (radioactivity) properties of materials, accredited
tests measurements, testing and analyses. The accreditation certificates are issued to
laboratories 1093.2, 1093.3 a 1093.4. by Cesky institut pro akreditaci, o.p.s. [Czech Institute for
Accreditation] on the basis of regular verification of the performance of accreditation criteria under
the standard CSN EN ISO/IEC 17025.

+ Central analytical laboratory — accredited testing laboratory
+ Accredited testing laboratory — evaluation of properties of materials
» Accredited testing laboratory — qualification of installations for the external environment

* Accredited testing laboratory — mechanical properties.

il
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COMMERCIAL PRODUCTION OF RADIOPHARMACEUTICALS

Our product range includes the manufacture and quality control of medical products and
pharmaceuticals for clinical trials. We supply our radiopharmaceuticals to a wide range of nuclear
medicine departments both in the Czech Republic and abroad. We are producers of diagnostic
and nuclear medicine (PET) products in line with valid authorisation documents. PET (positron
emission tomography) stands for a medical imaging method based on the principle of localising
the site of y photons, produced in the body by the annihilation of positrons released by an
administered radioactive substance (radiopharmaceutical), and electrons.

* Radiopharmaceuticals — injection

 Distribution of pharmaceuticals

* Quality control of pharmaceuticals

PRODUCTION OF EVALUATED MEDICINAL PRODUCTS

During 2024, we successfully registered a new product Fluorodopa (18F) UJV for diagnostics
using a PET camera.

The launch of the above product took place during 2023 and 2024.
The first commercial production ran in PET Centre Brno on 22 November 2024.

In the upcoming year, our focus will be on transferring production also to PET Centre Rez.

PET CENTRES

Thanks to our many-year and unique experience in the given field of construction and routine
operations of three centres for positron emission tomography (PET) in the Czech Republic, we
are able to provide comprehensive and highly specialised services both in the construction of new
PET centres and in the training of their operators.

* PET Centre Prague
* PET Centre Brno

+ Research and Development PET Centre Rez.

DEVELOPMENT AND TESTING OF NEW PHARMACEUTICALS

Our focus is on modern trends of the expected development of diagnostic and therapeutic
pharmaceuticals, inter alia, the labelling of antibodies and proteins with radionuclides. Research
and development of new pharmaceuticals are carried out in our Research and Development PET
Centre in Rez.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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As a result of its current projects, UJV has progressed towards comprehensive services in putting
hydrogen management into practice — today, our competencies range from the development, through
design, authorisation procedure and engineering to the actual construction of facilities and turnkey
delivery.

In addition to our small filling station in Rez, the portfolio of our contracts in transport and infrastructure
include, by way of example, design work and authorisation procedure for the first hydrogen station
CEPRO Mstétice, hydrogen ranger extender for battery vehicles, studies into the use of hydrogen trains
on Czech regional railway lines as well as other technical and economic studies for public transport.

Energy applications and the introduction of hydrogen management are promoted by us through our
feasibility studies for H2 use, such as for H2 storage at the site of Power Plant Mélnik, the construction
of VFE and hydrogen production at the sites of Spolana Neratovice and Unipetrol Litvinov, and a study
on the use of energy storage in hydrogen for the enterprise Povodi Ohfre.

We are also engaged in research into fuel cell catalysts on the basis of nanomaterials, or development
of a reversible alkaline fuel cess. Last but not least, our offer includes consultancy and contractual
research in the development and optimisation of equipment (electrolysis, fuel cells). In a number of
contracts, we have successfully applied our know-how in the life cycle analysis of energy technologies,
and continue to broaden our expertise in the above field
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For almost 70 years, UJV Rez has ranked among the leading research, development and
engineering organisations in Europe. Its focus has been primarily on the support directed at the
safe, reliable and efficient operation of energy sources, especially nuclear sources, radioactive
waste management, decommissioning of nuclear installations and designing, including related
engineering activities. The company’s portfolio of activities also includes other components of the
energy mix, complete with hydrogen technologies. Nuclear medicine considered, the company
has been engaged in the development, production and distribution of radiopharmaceuticals and
the construction and operation of positron emission tomography (PET) centres.

Research and development activities are carried out within internal projects geared towards the
development of products and services provided by UJV ReZ to operators and suppliers of energy
facilities, and research projects at the national and international levels, in which projects the role
of UJV Rez is that of a researcher as well as an industrial partner in cooperation with research
organisations, institutions of the Academy of Sciences of the Czech Republic and universities.
UJV Rez is a member of the European project consortium OFFERR (European Platform for
Accessing Nuclear R&D Facilities) aimed at supporting research infrastructure, in which also other
Czech research organisations seek to be involved.

In the area of support for the operations of nuclear power plants, activities continued in projects
for the development and improvement of methodologies for assessing the service life of nuclear
power plants. After four years, the European project APAL (Advanced PTS Analysis for LTO —
Advanced pressure-temperature shock analyses to guarantee the safe long-term operation of
reactor pressure vessels) was finally completed. Several other projects with a focus on assessing
the integrity of reactor pressure vessels successfully came to an end (European projects
STRUMAT-LTO, FRACTESUS, ENTENTE). As regards VVER power plants, the DELISA-LTO
project continued, within which tests were carried out of archival materials obtained from the
decommissioned Slovak power plant Jaslovské Bohunice V1. Similarly, the company also worked
on projects addressing the influence of environment on the fatigue life of components of nuclear
power plants or the development of robots and the use of artificial intelligence for automated
ultrasonic testing. The laboratories engaged in the qualification of equipment for external
environments, including emergency operating conditions of nuclear power plants, participated in
projects aimed at the development of optical and electrical cables applicable for the needs of new
and long-operated nuclear power plants.

For many years, UJV ReZ has been engaged in research and development of nuclear fuel and
increasing its resistance to severe accidents; in this respect, problems of stabilising “corium”, i.e.
molten reactor core, specifically by the synergistic application of results from domestic projects,
fostered by the Technology Agency of the Czech Republic, the international project ROSAU
(Reduction of Severe Accident Uncertainties) under the auspices of OECD NEA (Nuclear Energy
Agency) and our own research activities. As for nuclear fuel, research and development was
concentrated on the qualification of advanced variants of fuel cladding that will allow for a more
reliable and safer operation of existing and planned nuclear power plants, including small modular
reactors (SMR). The flagship of these activities is the INCA programme INCA (In-pile Creep
Studies of ATF Claddings), conducted by UJV ReZ together with Centrum vyzkumu ReZ [ReZ
Research Centre] within the international project OECD NEA FIDES Il (Framework for Irradiation
Experiments). Thanks to the above programme, Rez has hosted testing of advanced materials
for nuclear fuel cladding from around the word (France, Japan, USA, and others). The joint project
with Idaho National Laboratory and General Atomics (USA), supported by the Technology Agency
of the Czech Republic, enabled UJV Rez to examine SiC composite cladding tubes under the
conditions of generation IV reactors. The aforesaid references from international projects led to
the formation of active bilateral research cooperation with Westinghouse and Framatome in 2024.
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The year 2024 saw the successful completion of work on the European projects EURAD and
PREDIS, which scrutinised the issues of radioactive waste (RW) management. UJV Rez, in
cooperation with the Radioactive Waste Repository Authority (SURAO), Rez Research Centre,

UJV Rez, a. s. 29



Research and development Vefejné / Public

and other partners, was actively involved in the preparation of the follow-up project EURAD 2,
which now combines both areas of RW management (predisposal and disposal): The participation
continued in the HARPERS project, which examines the options of harmonising legislative and
technical tools to support circular economy in the management of waste from the
decommissioning of nuclear installations. Research activities continuing from the previous period
include the conceptual study of alternative options for RW storage and the issues of solidification
of high-level radioactive waste after a severe accident clear-up.

Regarding radiopharmaceuticals, UJV Rez is involved in the activities of the National Competence
Centre PERMED: T2BA (Personalised Medicine: From Translational Research into Biomedical
Applications), which brings together several research organisations and companies in the Czech
Republic and is supported by the Technology Agency of the Czech Republic in the National
Competence Centre programme. Another research and development project consists in a long-
term testing of a substantially innovative device for quality control of PET radiopharmaceuticals
with a potential to minimise special and financial requirements for those operations.

In cooperation with ReZ Research Centre and other partners, UJV Rez is involved in the work on
projects dealing with the development of technologies of pressurised water small modular
reactors (SMR), pursuing the aim of developing know-how in this area and as well as the
technologies that the Czech industrial sectors will be able to use in the future in the construction
and operations of SMRs in the Czech Republic and abroad alike.

In addition, UJV ReZ has targeted the development of non-nuclear energy technologies —
cooperation with research and industrial partners continued in 2024 with respect to the projects
aimed at the development of energy storage systems and hydrogen technologies, where UVJ
Rez specialised in the area of fuel cells, the development of their components, the integration for
various applications and the provision of infrastructure for their testing. An analysis of the option
of using hydrogen propulsion on railway lines in the Czech Republic was carried out, also covering
cross-border lines (cooperation with Germany). A new project was launched in pursuance of the
development of an innovative method of electrochemical hydrogen compression. With reference
to hydrogen technologies, research cooperation at an international level (Germany, lIsrael,
Taiwan) was developed intensively.

Regarding the diagnostics of energy installations and surface treatment of materials, our portfolio
cannot be complete without research and development activities of the subsidiary VZU Plzen,
which in 2024 continued in its research and development with a focus on industrial applications
of thermal spraying technology, including ColdSpray technology, and the related development of
processes for extending the service life of high value-added components, chiefly in the energy
and aviation sectors, by spraying metal alloy-based coatings. In the area of comprehensive
predictive diagnostics, the company’s activities centred around the use of autonomous aerial
vehicles (drones) in combination with data science methods and advanced methods of signal
processing. To evaluate the data obtained during a series of aerial inspections, VZU Plzefi has
developed unique software for the precise identification and subsequent visualisation of selected
defects across the industrial infrastructure. Moreover, VZU Plzefi has been intensively engaged
in the development of procedures for evaluating the interaction of distribution system materials
and storage tanks with hydrogen environments and the determination of the service life and
reliability of the devices concerned. In 2024, VZU Plzern developed several methodologies,
applicable to tests of degradation of properties of material in hydrogen-rich environments.

8 UJV Rez -research and development expenses in 2024 (in CZK million)

e

E Total of which subsidies received
2

é Research and development expenses 494.5 92.3
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GENERATION IV NUCLEAR REACTORS AND SMALL NUCLEAR REACTORS

In accordance with the needs of power sector development in the Czech Republic, we are
engaged in research and developmental activities for the nuclear reactors currently operating, for
new generation nuclear reactors (GEN 1V) and for small modular reactors (SMR).

SAFETY AND RELIABILITY OF NUCLEAR INSTALLATIONS

Our research into nuclear safety is linked to the existing safety of operations of nuclear
installations, builds on such safety and develops or supplement procedures, methodologies and
criteria used, with the view of operational feedback, knowledge and requirements set out by the
national legislation, recommendations of international organisations or global development in the
area of nuclear safety.

FUEL CYCLE OF NUCLEAR POWER PLANTS

On a comprehensible basis, we support nuclear power plants primarily in the middle part of the
fuel cycle, from the moment the fuel is supplied to the nuclear power plant to its removal from the
reactors and storing in the intermediate storage. A number of our R&D projects attends to the fuel
cycle.

RADIOACTIVE WASTE REPOSITORIES

For many years, we have served as the main location for engineering and research support for
the Deep Repository project in the Czech Republic. The development of the project is managed
by the Radioactive Waste Repository Authority. Moreover, we provide developmental and
technical support for the operation and upgrading of near-shallow repositories for the disposal of
low and intermediate level waste.

RESEARCH INTO MATERIALS

Our many-year research into materials has an internationally award-winning track record, in
pursuance of ensuring nuclear safety, extending the lifetime of nuclear installations and
development of new materials for non-nuclear use. We have also been involved in the
development of applications in nanotechnologies for nuclear power sector and radioactive waste
management.

RENEWABLE ENERGY SOURCES

Another area of our focus is based on the design of systems for the combined generation of
electricity and heat from biogas or pyrolysis gas based on high-temperature fuel cells, systems
for gas treatment and hydrogen separation from synthesis gas mixtures, expertise in the use of
concentrating solar power plants as a source of high-potential heat for high-temperature water
electrolysis, and expertise in the design of energy storage systems.

RESEARCH INTO MATERIALS

In the role of a researcher, we have been involved in research projects addressing the issues of
capture and storage of carbon dioxide (CCS), generated in the power sector during the
combustion or gasification of fossil fuels.
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UJV Rez, a. s., is fully aware of the key importance of its employees. Their high expertise and the
transfer of know-how constitute the cornerstone of our strategy. A special attention is paid to
further education of our experts. Emphasis is also on the managerial skills of senior and other key
employees.

Educational programme

The scope of business and strategic plans of UJV Rez place high demands on the knowledge,
skills and experience of our employees.

In the context of employees’ continuous development, the educational programme focuses on:

+ training to meet qualification requirements in accordance with legislative requirements, e.g.
fire protection training, occupational safety, cyber security, personal data protection (GDPR),

* investment in improving and broadening the qualifications,

« programmes for selected groups of employees, such as the Managerial Skills Development
Programme,

 training to acquire necessary knowledge and skills beyond the framework of qualifications,

» continuous development of the portfolio of presentation, e-learning and combined training in
hard and soft skills.

In addition to formal trainings, our employees attend specialised congresses and conferences
both in the Czech Republic and abroad.

In 2023 the company organised an anonymous employee survey with the aim of evaluating
employees’ satisfaction with their employer and their level of loyalty and obtaining feedback on
key aspects of the working environment and corporate culture. The survey outcomes included
employees’ recommendations, which were then processed and used for the preparation of a
project the implementation of which has promoted the perception of the company as an attractive
employer, while encouraging employee loyalty.

One of the key findings of the survey consisted in the demand for more intensive growth and
training of employees, especially in the areas boosting their work performance — e.g. special IT
courses and trainings focused on soft skills. In 2024, the company responded to these
suggestions by arranging for two series of internal open courses tackling the aforesaid areas.
Both series met with great interest on the part of employees and all places in the courses were
filled.

Growth of employee development costs
(in TCZK)

10000
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4000 * This year, the
implementation of
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0 activities was affected

2007 2018 2019 2020° 2021° 2022 2023 2024 by the C.OVID_19
pandemic
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Educational programme

The social policy of UJV RezZ is based on employer stability and encompasses a wide array of
activities and benefits provided to employees, both in the form of monetary and non-monetary
performance. Our employees have at their disposal a diverse portfolio of benefits and advantages,
including, for example:

+ flexible working hours, with the option of part-time work, etc.
* longer holiday — 5 weeks,

» above-standard meal allowance,

 three sick days with pay,

* benefit-based cafeteria for spending funds on recreation and leisure activities, healthcare,
etc.,

» above-standard healthcare, including selected vaccinations,

« contribution to selected pension products and life insurance,

+ option of taking time off beyond the framework determined by legal regulations,
* summer day camp for employees’ children,

» one-off social assistance in exceptional circumstances,

» sports day and other sports events during the year,

+ financial contributions for trade unions in the case of organisation of cultural events, trips,
children’s camps and other activities promoting employees’ health and regeneration.

The employer is committed to continuous improvement of the working environment, working
conditions and its employees’ motivation and engagement.

Relations with trade unions

Two trade unions operated in UJV ReZ. Regular meetings were held in 2024 between the
employer and representatives of trade unions, during which information was transferred to the
unions, and organisational changes and other themes were discussed as prescribed by the
Labour Code and the Collective Agreement and as directed by interests of both parties.

Structure of employees by age and education
At the end of 2024, 754 employees worked in UJV RezZ.

The average age was 46.00 years in December 2024.
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Age structure of employees in 2024

%

® below 25 6.11
26-30 5.97

e 31-40 22.41
® 41-50 29.04
® 51-60 22.68
© 61 and more 13.79

Structure of employees’ education levels in 2024

%

® Elementary 0.40
Vocational 7.03

® Secondary school with leaving 27.85
examination certificate

® Tertiary technical 1.06

® University 55.30

@ University, doctoral 8.36

Employee structure by gender in 2024

® Men 72.15
® \Women 27.85
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Certified under the international standards ISO 9001, ISO 14001 and ISO 45001, and plans, uJv
Rez, a. s., undertakes and verifies its activities, processes, products and services in a way
ensuring the achievement of quality products with high added value, while minimising negative
impacts on the environment and emphasising the safety of activities, products and services
rendered. The company reviews its integrated management system policy on a regular basis, sets
up measurable objectives annually to develop the above policy, revies and manages risks and
fosters the safety culture. Apart from compliance with legislation, the essence of the integrated
management system policy and the culture safety is primarily to broaden awareness among all
employees of the necessity to consider safety, quality, reliability and environmental aspects in
every activity conducted and decision made.

Our company is also committed to promoting the principles of quality, reliability, safety of activities
and products and environmental protection among its suppliers by systematically evaluating the
supplies and conducting audits of its major suppliers.

The integrated management system of UJV Rez, a. s. is regularly reviewed by an independent
audit carried out by DNV, but also by auditors of our key accounts, such as CEZ a.s. or Slovenské
elektrarne, a.s., with which we continue to collaborate as a quality supplier. In 2024, UJV Rez was
also successfully certified by the German branch of Framatome as per ISO 19443.
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The management of UJV ReZ, a. s., maintains and improves the company’s management system
on a continuous basis in a way ensuring that the company’s objectives, requirements and
expectations of customers and interested parties are met. To this end, the company has integrated
the requirements of standards ISO 9001, ISO 14001, ISO 45001, legislative requirements and
resource management.

The management of UJV Rez, a. s., fully understands and unreservedly assumes its responsibility
for the provision of safety and protection, including nuclear and radiation safety, quality assurance
and the assurance of the pharmaceutical quality system in the production of medicinal products in
the sense of applicable legislation of the Czech Republic and this country’s international
commitments.

To accomplish the aforementioned responsibility, the management of UJV ReZ, a. s., undertakes
to create and foster appropriate conditions and adequate human resources and funds, efficient
management structure and controls.

Safety (as defined in TOP 001) is treated by our company as an integral part of all activities, and
we understand Safety as a situation where all risks are limited to an acceptable and reasonably
achievable level.

To meet the expectations of the company’s customers and owners and to demonstrate its
commitment to the utmost environmentally friendly behaviour, its employees’ safety and healthcare
and to protect all of its assets, the company’s management promulgates this Integrated Policy,
enforceable at all management levels and all activities of the company. In particular, the company’s
management undertakes to:

1. Protect legitimate safety interests ensuing from the Company’s activities for all interested
parties, mainly employees, owners, customers, suppliers and the public in all areas of safety,
chiefly the protection of life and health, nuclear safety, physical safety, radiation safety,
information security and data protection.

Maintain and improve the quality and added value of the company’s products and services.
Take care to minimise the impact of the company’s activities on the environment.
Observe the company’s Code of Ethics, including the principles of safety culture.

Encourage employees’ professional and qualification development.

2 e

Take care of the company’s property and assets by using the same responsibly, regular
maintenance and meaningful investments in development in accordance with our owners’
expectations.

7. In the area of Safety, apply a tiered approach to the observance of Czech legislation and
customers’ requirements such that the Safety Rules are not violated. To apply information
security requirements to all information assets across the company.

8. Manage risks with the aim of identifying potential threats, weaknesses and vulnerabilities of
the Safety system, to adopt measures to reduce the risks to an acceptable level and to
continue to monitor those risks.

9. Ensure that Safety, primarily nuclear safety and radiation protection, is not compromised by
other priorities.

10. Seek opportunities to reduce energy consumption, input raw materials and other materials. To
manage the quantity of pollutants emitted into the environment and to take continuous care to :
prevent pollution, reduce the amount of waste produced, sort waste and contribute to its further :
use.
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11. Encourage open access and dialogue with employees, the public and other interested parties
by accepting suggestions and, through suitable responses to those suggestions, maintaining
an active employment of safety elements and the involvement of all interested parties,
thereby creating a suitable environment for continuous improvement of the company’s safety
situation.

12. Require that the company’s suppliers meet requirements related to quality and Safety and to
strive for stable and mutual beneficial relations.

13. Each employee is personally responsible for Safety wherever and whenever they are present,
they identify and communicate risks and understand their contribution to the improvement of
Safety.

14. Manage safety incidents as an essential preventive measure of the Safety system.

15. Require, on a consistent basis, that all employees adhere to the established objectives and
procedures in accordance with the management documentation, maintain high quality of and
responsibility for their own work, prevent errors by self-checking procedures and work results
before submitting the same to internal or external customers.

To support the performance of the Integrated Policy, the company’s management commits to
regularly revise the suitability of the Policy, to determine objectives in the area of integrated
management system and to create necessary resources and work conditions for the objectives
determined to be fulfilled. The Integrated Policy is reviewed annually by issuing the company’s
measurable goals for the given year, which goals are also evaluated once a year as a minimum.

The principles in the Integrated Policy are further detailed in the management documentation
system.

Revisions of the Integrated Policy respond to changing conditions in the Company’s business
environment, internal changes and external demands.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

.............. WWW.Ujv.cz


http://www.ujv.cz/

F'“°’°d° 8 (18F) UV
?MB U '“J‘v‘kégi rcfztok ?Mordopa-{ﬂH

. MBg/ml. ... 8.1
RDMQQ‘!,MQ g

HRé138x. 12,6241

. !f*

' y iy

E*1‘§5 . 'l yx@s ¥
;\" ¥ ‘ *
%&seg u““”ootlirgcn
T :

“ 1 speun %ﬁ'ﬁ&%i‘ g
agobs (4gk) N

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

UJV Rez, a. s.




REPORT ON
BUSINESS
ACTIVITIES AND
ASSETS OF

UJV REZ, A. S.


http://www.ujv.cz/

Verejné / Pﬂglic
SL’IJVS

Business management

In 2024, the company reported the operating profit in the amount of CZK 67.8 million, i.e. an
amount lower by CZK 16 million compared to 2023.

The year 2024 saw the company achieve an increase in revenue of more than CZK 155 million
compared to 2023. On the contrary, the change in inventories of own operations decreased by
CZK 38.2 million, production consumption increased by CZK 55.5 million, there was an increase
in personnel costs by CZK 67.3 million, costs related to adjustment of values in the operating
grew by CZK 33.8 million, and other operating expenses decreased by CZK 2 million. The positive
decrease in costs in 2024 was mainly in operating costs, which fell by CZK 56 million.

The loss before tax amounts to CZK 214.8 million due to the creation of an adjustment to financial
assets of CZK 296.7 million and a decrease in the interest received by CZK 1.1 million.

The company met all key financial indicators set in the annual plan for 2024.

The Czech Republic (CZ), especially the CEZ Group, continues as the major market for UJV Rez,
a. s. In 2024, sales from the EU increased by 5%.

Distribution of operating revenues in 2024

%

e CZ 86
e EU 13
Other foreign countries 1

Distribution of operating revenues by customers in 2024
%

® CEZGroup 63
Subsidy funds 5.8 %
® Radioactive Waste Repository Authority [SURAQ] 1.2 g
® Other CZ customers 16 %
Slovenské elektrarne, a.s. 2 g
® Other foreign countries 12 <
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Report on business activities and assets of UJV Rez, a. s.

Share of individual departments in the total

operating revenue in 2024
%

® Nuclear safety and reliability 16.4 l
® Integrity and technical engineering 29.6

Radioactive waste and decommissioning 8.3
® ENERGOPROJEKT PRAHA 21.3

Radiopharmaceuticals 12.3
® Operational and administrative 121

departments

Structure of assets and capital
In 2024, the assets of UJV Rez, a. s., decreased by CZK 183.8 million to CZK 3,051.8 million.

Current assets grew by CZK 37.2 million. The company reports an increase in receivables of CZK
154.9 million, mainly in trade receivables and other receivables. On the contrary, we recorded a
decrease in inventories of CZK 19.7 million and a decrease in cash of CZK 98 million.

The year 2024 marked a decrease in long-term assets of CZK 222 million owing to a reduction in
non-current financial assets of CZK 296.7 million to CZK 378.5 million. In contrast, tangible fixed
assets increased by CZK 72.1 million to CZK 1,367.8 million due to the completion of investment
projects in the site infrastructure and renewal of installations. In 2024, there was also an increase
in intangible assets of CZK 2.6 million.

Equity decreased by CZK 234 million to CZK 1,838 million. The negative effect on equity in 2024
was mainly caused by the use of retained earnings from previous years to cover the loss of the
previous year, and also to the lower profit for the current accounting period by CZK 89.4 million.
Liabilities (external resources) considered, there was an increase of CZK 41.1 million to CZK
1,197 million in 2024, mainly attributable to an increase in the reserves of CZK 59.4 million.
Liabilities decreased by CZK 18.3 million in 2024, chiefly in the case of trade payables

Investment projects
The company’s investment expenditures in 2024 totalled 189.8 million.

The most important investment projects in 2024 included the following:

» The major items in the revitalisation of the infrastructure of the complex in the total amount of
CZK 19.7 million were invested in the renovation of roofs of four buildings (CZK 11.1 million).

+ Construction work continued on the revitalisation project of the Radiochemistry building. In
2024, work on replacing ventilation equipment and renovating premises for the CAL
laboratory. The total of CZK 85.4 million was invested in 2024.
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* The renewal of obsolete equipment and procurement of new technically more advanced
apparatus for trouble-free maintenance and expansion of production capacities in the total
amount of CZK 56.1 million, especially in the production of radiopharmaceuticals and
mechanical testing of test bodies.

* Renewal and expansion of the existing hardware and software in the amount of CZK 18,9
million. As for software expansion, additional APROS code licences were purchased for CZK
5.9 million. Hardware purchases mainly involved the regular renewal of office and
technological IT equipment.

» Fleet renewal the company fire rescue brigade in the amount of CZK 7.5 million.

Ownership interests of UJV Rez, a. s.
The subsidiaries of UJV ReZ, a. s., included the following companies as of 31 December 2024

+ Centrum vyzkumu Rez s.r.o.

* Vyzkumny a zkuSebni ustav Plzen s.r.o.
- SKODA PRAHA as.

* RadioMedic s.r.o.

e South Bohemian Nuclear Park, s.r.o.
*%’ CVR
o ..

A\ /44
PLZEN

@) $HoDA PRANHRA
RadioMedic

The first four business corporations listed above are fully owned subsidiary business corporations
(DOK) as per Section 74 of Act No. 90/2012 Coll., on Business Corporations. South Bohemian
Nuclear Park, s.r.o. is 20% owned by UJV ReZ, a. s. The company UJV Rez, a. s. and all of the
above companies are members of the UJV Group.

Centrum
vyzkumu Rez
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In addition, the company has three foreign structural components, namely in Slovakia, Hungary
and Turkey.
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. Structure of relations
Controlled entity and compiler of the Report on Relations
UJV Rez, a. s.
Hlavni 130, Rez, 250 68 Husinec
Company ID No.: 46356088
Registered in the Commercial Register maintained by the Municipal Court in Prague, Section B, Insert
1833.
Controlling entity
CEZ, a.s.
Duhova 2/1444
140 53 Prague 4
Company ID No.: 45274649
Registered in the Commercial Register maintained by the Municipal Court in Prague, Section B, Insert
1581.
In the relevant reporting period, CEZ, a. s. owns shares corresponding to a 69.85% share in voting
rights of UJV Rez, a. s.
Business UJV Group as of 31 December 2024
Parent business company Registered office Company ID No.
UJV Rez, a. s. (UJV) Hlavni 130, Rez, 250 68 Husinec 46356088
Subsidiary business company Registered office  Company ID No. Ownership interest
(in %)
N . Hlavni 130, Rez, .
Centrum vyzkumu Rez s.r.o. (CVR) . 26722445 uJv -100
250 68 Husinec
. . Duhova 1444/2, .
SKODA PRAHA a.s. (SP) 00128201 UJVv - 100
140 00 Prague 4
. , . L. . Tylova 581/46,
Vyzkumny a zkuSebni Ustav Plzen o _ .
, Jizni Pfedmeésti, 47718684 UJv - 100
s.r.o. (VZU) .
301 00 Plzer
_ , Rez 289, . E
RadioMedic s.r.o. i 28389638 uJdv -100 o
250 68 Husinec m
o
g
P
Z
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Business UJV Group as of 31 December 2024

Parent business company Registered office Company ID No.

Centrum vyzkumu Rez s.r.o. (CVR) Hlavni 130, Rez, 250 68 Husinec 26722445

Subsidiary business company Registered office  Company ID No. Ownership interest
(in %)

Centrum vyzkumu ReZ Innovations Hlavni 130, Rez, .

s.r.o. (iCVR) S A e 21698210 CVR - 100

Other entities controlled by the same controlling entity

The structural chart of the entrepreneurial grouping of the controlling entity is provided in Annex
No. 1 to this Report.

Business UJV Group as of 31 December 2024

Subsidiary business company Registered office Company ID No.  Ownership interest
(in %)
Lipova 1789/9,

South Bohemian Nuclear Park, sro. 97005 17641349 UJv - 20
Ceské Budéjovice 2

2. Role of the controlled entity within the group

Essentially, the role of UJV Rez, a. s. is that of a services provider in the nuclear power sector,
while a significant portion of such services is rendered to the controlling entity.

3. Method and means of control

CEZ, a. s., controls UJV Rez, a. s., through its majority share in voting rights at the General
Meeting.

4. Overview of actions taken at the instigation or in the
interest of the controlling entity or entities controlled by the
controlling entity

During the relevant period, UJV Rez, a. s. carried out no actions at the instigation or in the interest
in the controlling entity or entities controlled by the controlling entity, in relation to assets
exceeding 10% of the equity of UJV Rez, a. s., determined according to the latest financial
statements.
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5. Overview of mutual contracts

The overview of mutual contracts between UJV Rez, a. s. and CEZ, a. s., and between UJV Rez,
a. s. and the entities controlled by CEZ, a. s. forms Annex No. 2 to this Report. These contracts
include not only contracts executed in the relevant reporting period but also previously executed
contracts still in effect.

The provision of performance and consideration took place on the basis of contracts concluded,
under terms and conditions customary in business relations and in accordance with terms and
conditions set forth in the contracts.

The performance provided to the controlling entity by the controlled entity consisted in the rendering
of services for prices agreed upon. The consideration for the services provided by the controlled
entity constituted the financial payment based on prices set out in contracts.

The same principle was applied in contracts with subsidiaries of CEZ, a. s. and subsidiaries of UJV
Rez, a. s.

Contracts between the controlling entity and the controlled entity and between the controlled entity
and entities controlled by the same controlling entity, listed in Annex No. 2, are available in the
registration system of UJV Rez, a. s., for retrieval and inspection by authorised persons as
necessary.

6. Evaluation of potential loss incurred to a controlled entity

No loss was incurred on the basis of contracts entered into during the reference period between
UJV Rez, a. s. and CEZ, a. s., and other entities controlled by CEZ, a. s. and UJV Rez, a. s.

7. Reference period

This Report on Relations was prepared for the reporting period from 01 January 2024 to 31
December 2024.

8. Assessment of advantages and disadvantages arising from the
relations between the controlling entity and the controlled
entity and between the controlled entity and entities controlled
by the same controlling entity

The company enjoys standard business relations with the controlling entity CEZ, a. s. as well as
entities controlled by the same controlling entities, and no advantages or disadvantages arise for
the company from such relations. These relations pose no risk for the controlled entity, which has
incurred no loss that should be subject to compensation under Section 71 or 72 of Act No. 90/2012
Coll., on Business Corporations.

9. Statement of the company’s statutory body

This Report on Relations as per Section 82 of Act No. 90/2012 Coll., on Business Corporations,
was prepared by the statutory body of UJV Rez, a. s. within the statutory period.
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Chairman of the Board of Directors

Ing. Patrik Spatzal, MBA
Member of the Board of Directors

Ing. Jan Wandrol
Member of the Board of Directors
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Czech Statutory Financial Statement Forms (in thousands of Czech crowns)

BALANCE SHEET

Current year Prior year
2023
Gross Allowances Net Net
TOTAL ASSETS 5,296,823 2,245,041 3,051,782 3,235,624
A STOCK SUBSCRIPTION RECEIVABLE
B. FIXED ASSETS 4,000,607 2,232,758 1,767,849 1,989,810
B. | Intangible fixed assets 195,575 -174,080 21,495 18,870
B. | 1 Development
2. Valuable rights 194,622 -174,080 20,542 14,804
Software 193,756 -173,823 19,933 14,177
Other valuable rights 866 -257 609 627
3. Goodwill
4. Other intangible fixed assets
5 gl fned acsets mpragress o o G
Advances granted for intangible fixed assets
Intangible fixed assets in progress 953 953 4,066
B. 1l Tangible fixed assets 2,939,748 -1,671,926 1,367,822 1,295,756
B. 1. 1 Land and structures 1,236,595 -619,968 616,627 578,368
Land 15,647 15,647 15,647
Structures 1,220,948 -619,968 600,980 562,721
2. Movable assets and sets of movable assets 1,475,889 -955,615 520,274 507,121
3. Gain or loss on revaluation of acquired property -3,657 3,657
4. Other tangible fixed assets 31 31 31
Perennial crops
Livestock
Miscellaneous tangible fixed assets 31 31 31
| st g o st
Advances granted for tangible fixed assets 11,353 11,353 25,737
Tangible fixed assets in progress 219,537 219,537 184,500
B. 1l Long-term investments 865,284 -486,752 378,532 675,184
B. lll. 1 Interests — controlled or controlling entity 864,281 -486,752 377,529 674,181
2. Loans and borrowings — controlled or controlling entity
3. Interests — significant influence 1,000 1,000 1,000
4. Loans and borrowings - significant influence
5. Other long-term securities and interests 3 3 3
6. Loans and borrowings - other
7. Other long-term investments
Miscellaneous long-term investments
Advances granted for long-term investments
UJV Rez, a.s.
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Financial Statements as of 31 December 2024

Czech Statutory Financial Statement Forms (in thousands of Czech crowns)

BALANCE SHEET

C. | CURRENT ASSETS 1,268,966 -12,283 1,256,683 1,219,456
I. Inventories 95,925 -3,963 91,962 111,629
l. Materials 18,911 18,911 15,801
Work in progress and semi-finished production 77,014 -3,963 73,051 95,828
Finished products and goods
1. Finished products
2. Goods
Livestock
Advances granted for inventories
1. Receivables 827,877 -8,320 819,557 664,677
I Long-term receivables 64,239 -300 63,939 55,257
1. Trade receivables 7,698 -300 7,398 4,945
2. Receivables — controlled or controlling entity
3. Receivables — significant influence
4. Deferred tax asset 51,857 51,857 45,713
5. Other receivables 4,684 4,684 4,599
5.1. Receivables from partners
5.2. Long-term advances granted 32 32 32
5.3. Unbilled revenue
5.4. Miscellaneous receivables 4,652 4,652 4,567
C. 1. Short-term receivables 763,638 -8,020 755,618 609,420
1. Trade receivables 708,533 -8,020 700,513 580,662
2. Receivables — controlled or controlling entity
3. Receivables — significant influence
4. Other receivables 55,105 55,105 28,758
4.1. Receivables from partners
4.2. Social security and health insurance
4.3. Due from government - tax receivables 5,714 5,714
4.4. Short-term advances granted 7,482 7,482 1,758
45 Unbilled revenue 29,179 29,179 17,603
4.6. Miscellaneous receivables 12,730 12,730 9,397
C. . Short-term financial assets
Interests - controlled or controlling entity
Other short-term financial assets
C. Iv. Cash 345,164 345,164 443,150
Cash in hand 3,259 3,259 4,615
Cash at bank 341,905 341,905 438,535
D. Prepaid expenses and accrued income 27,250 27,250 26,358
Prepaid expenses 27,250 27,250 26,358
Prepaid expenses (specific-purpose expenses)
Accrued income
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Czech Statutory Financial Statement Forms (in thousands of Czech crowns)

BALANCE SHEET

Current year Prior year
2023
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES 3,051,782 3,235,624
A EQUITY 1,838,000 2,071,624
A | Basic capital 524,139 524,139
A | 1 Registered capital 524,139 524,139
2. Own ownership interests (-)
3. Changes in basic capital
Al Share premium and revaluation reserve 112,516 112,516
A Il 1 Share premium
2. Capital funds 112,516 112,516
Other capital funds 85,149 85,149
Gain or loss on revaluation of assets and liabilities (+/-)
Gain or loss on revaluation upon corporate transformation (+/-)
Differences arising on corporate transformation (+/-) 27,367 27,367
Differences arising between balance sheet date and
transformation date (+/-)
Al Reserves from profit 331,126 336,726
Aol 1 Other reserves 104,828 104,828
2. Statutory and other reserves 226,298 231,898
A IV, Profit (loss) brought forward (+/-) 1,103,818 1,242,452
V. 1 Retained earnings 1,103,818 1,242,452
2. Other profit (loss) brought forward (+/-)
AV Profit (loss) for the year (+/-) -233,599 -144,209
A. VL Approved decision on advances for profit distribution (-)

B.+C. PROVISIONS AND LIABILITIES 1,197,832 1,156,712
B. Provisions 724,346 664,914
B. 1 Provision for pensions and similar obligations

2. Provision for corporate income tax 13,522

3. Provisions recognized under special legislation 174,106 144,160

4. Other provisions 550,240 507,232
UV Rez, a.s.
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Financial Statements as of 31 December 2024

Czech Statutory Financial Statement Forms (in thousands of Czech crowns)

BALANCE SHEET

Liabilities

473,486

491,799

Long-term liabilities

Bonds payable

Convertible bonds

Other bonds

Amounts owed to credit institutions

Long-term advances received

Trade payables

Long-term notes payable

Liabilities — controlled or controlling entity

Liabilities — significant influence

Deferred tax liability

Other liabilities

Liabilities to partners

Unbilled deliveries

Miscellaneous liabilities

Current liabilities

473,486

491,799

Bonds payable

Convertible bonds

Other bonds

Amounts owed to credit institutions

Short-term advances received

7,444

Trade payables

184,312

220,503

Short-term notes payable

Liabilities — controlled or controlling entity

Liabilities — significant influence

Other liabilities

289,174

263,852

Liabilities to partners

Short-term borrowings

Liabilities to employees

40,377

36,985

Liabilities arising from social security and health insurance

22,210

19,622

Due to government — taxes and subsidies

98,314

69,437

Unbilled deliveries

120,567

130,657

Miscellaneous liabilities

7,706

7,251

Accruals and deferred income

15,950

7,288

Accruals

5

Deferred income

15,945

7,288

20

WWW.UjV.cz



Czech Statutory Financial Statement Forms (in thousands of Czech crowns)

INCOME STATEMENT

Current year Prior year
2023
. Revenue from sale of finished products and services 1,788,389 1,633,305
I Revenue from sale of goods
A. Production-related consumption 719,347 663,842
A1, Cost of goods sold
A2. Consumption of material and energy 130,060 147,652
A3. Services 589,287 516,189
B. Change in inventory produced internally (+/-) 18,828 -19,741
C. Own work capitalized (-) -11,601 -9,426
D. Personnel expenses 904,215 836,894
D.1. Wages and salaries 664,958 615,075
D.2. Social security and health insurance costs and other costs 239,257 221,819
D.2.1. Social security and health insurance costs 221,053 204,028
D.2.2. Other costs 18,204 17,791
E. Value adjustments in respect of operating activities 93,078 59,238
E.1. Value adjustments in respect of intangible and tangible fixed assets 106,877 103,220
E.1.1. Value adjustments in respect of intangible and tangible fixed assets - permanent 106,877 103,220
E.1.2. Value adjustments in respect of intangible and tangible fixed assets - temporary
E.2. Value adjustments in respect of inventory 3,949 -1,295
E.3. Value adjustments in respect of receivables -17,748 -42,687
. Other operating income 97,643 99,663
1.1. Income from sale of fixed assets 1,415 46
111.2. Income from sale of materials 1,409 1,064
1.3. Miscellaneous operating income 94,819 98,553
F. Other operating expenses 94,377 150,369
F.A1. Net book value of fixed assets sold 1,605 247
F.2. Net book value of materials sold 1,262 1,028
F.3. Taxes and charges relating to operations 2,989 1,721
F.4. Provisions relating to operations and prepaid expenses (specific-purpose expenses) 72,954 106,135
F.5. Miscellaneous operating expenses 15,567 41,238
* Profit or loss on operating activities (+/-) 67,788 51,792
UJV Rez, a.s.
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Financial Statements as of 31 December 2024

Czech Statutory Financial Statement Forms (in thousands of Czech crowns)

INCOME STATEMENT

V. Income from long-term investments - interests
IV.1. Income from interests in subsidiaries or parents
IvV.2. Other income from interests
G. Cost of interests sold
V. Income from other long-term investments
V.1, Income from other long-term investments - subsidiaries or parents
V.2. Other income from other long-term investments
H. Expenses relating to other long-term investments
VI. Interest receivable and similar income 15,584 16,634
VIA. Interest receivable and similar income - subsidiaries or parents 2,259 793
VI.2. Other interest receivable and similar income 13,325 15,841
I Value adjustments and provisions relating to financial activities 296,652 190,100
J. Interest payable and similar expenses 160 186
J.1. Interest payable and similar expenses - subsidiaries or parents
J.2. Other interest payable and similar expenses 160 186
VII. Other finance income 4,613 4,799
K. Other finance cost 5,995 8,915
* Profit or loss on financial activities (+/-) -282,610 -177,768
had Profit or loss before taxation (+/-) -214,822 -125,976
L. Income tax 18,777 18,233
L.1. Income tax due 24,921 32,112
L.2. Income tax deferred (+/-) -6,144 -13,879
had Profit or loss after taxation (+/-) -233,599 -144,209
M. Transfer of share of profit or loss to partners (+/-)
bl Profit or loss for the year (+/-) -233,599 -144,209
* Net turnover 1,883,208 0

92
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Czech Statutory Financial Statement Forms (in thousands of Czech crowns)

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023

Current year Prior year
2023
| Cash flows from operating activities

Z. | Profit or loss on ordinary activities before taxation (+/-) -214,822 -125,976
A ’ Adjustments to reconcile profit or loss to net cash provided by or used in 449,423 363,032

operating activities
A. 1 1 Depreciation and amortization of fixed assets and write-off of receivables 106,877 103,220
A 1. 2 Change in allowances 282,853 146,118
A 1. 3 Change in provisions 72,954 101,795
A 1. 4 Foreign exchange differences 1,550 106
A 1. 5 (Gain)/Loss on disposal of fixed assets 190 201
A 1. 6 Interest expense and interest income -15,424 -16,448
A " - cher non-cash movements (e.g. revaluation at fair value to profit or loss, 423 28,040

dividends received)

N Net cash from operating activities before taxation, changes in working

A capital and extraordinary items AN AT
A. 2 Change in non-cash components of working capital -117,822 45,296
A 2. 1 Change in inventory 15,718 -22,631
A 2. 2 Change in trade receivables -104,180 48,878
A 2. 3 Change in other receivables and in prepaid expenses and unbilled revenue -21,610 -6,260
A 2. 4 Change in trade payables -34,290 9,318
A 2. 5 Change in other payables, and in accruals and deferred income 26,540 15,991
A " Net cash. from.operatlng activities before taxation, interest paid and 116,779 282,352

extraordinary items
A 3. 1 Interest paid -160 -186
A 4. 1 Income Tax paid -44,157 -22,933
A b Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 72,462 259,233

UJV Rez, a.s.
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ANNUAL REPORT 2024

Financial Statements as of 31 December 2024

Czech Statutory Financial Statement Forms (in thousands of Czech crowns)

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023

Cash flows from investing activities
B. 1. Purchase of fixed assets -187,422 -161,946
B. 2. Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 1,415 46
B. 3. Loans granted
B. 4. Interest received 15,584 16,634
B. 5. Dividends received
B x Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities -170,423 -145,266
Cash flows from financing activities
C. 1. Change in long-term liabilities, and long-term and short-term loans
C. 2. Effect of other changes in equity on cash
C. 2. Profit shares paid
C. 2. Effect of other changes in own capital on cash -25 -20
C o Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities -25 -20
F. Net increase (decrease) in cash -97,986 113,947
P. Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 443,150 329,203
R. Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 345,164 443,150

94
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Notes to the Financial Statements as of 31.12.2024 Verejne / Public

I. Description of the Company

The joint-stock company UJV ReZ, a. s. (hereinafter as the “Company”) was formed on 31
December 1992, and its registered office is located at the address Hlavni 130, Rez, 250 68
Husinec, Czech Republic, Company ID No. 46356088. The main scope of its activities consists
in technical and engineering services and all-industry project services for the nuclear power
sector, research and services for radioactive waste disposal, radiation chemistry and production
of radiopharmaceuticals.

Persons participating in the registered capital:

CEZ, a.s. 69.85%
Slovenskeé elektrarne, a.s., Slovak Republic 27.77%
Town of Husinec 2.38%

Its parent company is CEZ, a. s.

The Company is part of a consolidation unit of the parent company and the financial statements of
UJV Rez have been prepared as separate financial statements. The consolidated financial
statements are prepared by the parent company CEZ, a. s., which also retains the consolidated
financial statements; the consolidated financial statements will be disclosed in a public register.

Moreover, the Company is a parent company of the UJV Group. Pursuant to the Czech accounting
standards, the Company is exempt from the obligation to prepare the consolidated financial
statements under the Czech regulations.

Members of the statutory, management, control and administrative bodies as of 31 December
2024:

Board of Directors

Chair Ing. Martin Rus¢ak, CSc., MBA
Member Ing. Tomas Novotny

Member Ing. Patrik Spatzal, MBA
Member Ing. Petr Mach

N Supervisory Board
2 Chair Ing. Tomas Pleska¢, MBA
L
o
Z
2 Vice-Chair Ing. Bohdan Zronek
Z
Member JUDr. Marek Slégl
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Supervisory Board

Member JUDr. Michaela Chaloupkova, MBA
Member Ing. Pavel Janik

Member Ing. Ladislav Stépanek

Member René S&ibravy

Member Ing. Pavel Kral, Ph.D.

Member Ing. Milo$ Kytka

With effect from 02 March 2024, Ing. Milo§ Kytka became a new member of the Supervisory
Board, having been elected by employees in the election to the Supervisory Board as a substitute
member. He replaced Mr Michael Rapp (member of the Supervisory Board until 01 March 2024).

As of 30 September 2024, Ing. Daniel Jificka resigned from the position of a member of the Board
of Directors, and Ing. Martin Rus¢ak, CSc., MBA, was elected as a substitute member, and his
election to this position was confirmed by the General Meeting of the Company on 14 October
2024.

On 30 November 2024, Ing. Jan Stancl resigned from his position as a member of the Board of
Directors and, effective from 01 December 2024, Ing. Petr Mach was elected as a substitute
member, whose election to the position was confirmed by the General Meeting of the Company
on 16 December 2024.

Il. Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Act on
Accounting and its Implementing Regulation, as amended for 2024.

The financial statements have been prepared under the assumption that the Company will
continue as a going concern, for a perpetual period.

lll. General accounting principles, accounting methods and deviations
therefrom

The methods of valuation applied by the Company in the preparation of the financial statements
for 2023 and 2024 are as follows:

ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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Notes to the Financial Statements as of 31.12.2024 Verejne / Public

A. Intangible fixed assets

Intangible fixed assets are valued at a purchase cost, which includes the acquisition cost and
acquisition-related costs.

Intangible fixed assets in the value between CZK 40 thousand and CZK 80 thousand are
amortised to costs based on the estimated useful life of the relevant asset of 2 years.

Intangible fixed assets exceeding CZK 80 thousand are amortised to costs based on the
estimated useful life of the relevant asset of 5 years, or according to contractual provisions.

Amortisation

Amortisation is calculated on the basis of a purchase cost and the estimated useful life of the
relevant assent. The estimated life is determined as follows:

Assets Number of years (from-to)
Software 2-5
Other valuable rights under relevant contracts

B. Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are valued at a purchase cost, which includes the acquisition cost, costs of
transport, customs duty, and other acquisition-related costs.

Tangible fixed assets produced internally are valued at working costs, which include direct material
costs, personnel costs, services and operating overheads. Interest and other financial costs related
to acquisition are expensed at the Company’s discretion.

Tangible fixed assets in the value between CZK 40 thousand and 80 thousand is depreciated over
the period of the estimated useful life of 2 years.

Tangible fixed assets exceeding CZK 80 thousand are depreciated over the period of the estimated
useful life.

Tangible fixed assets acquired free of charge are valued at a replacement cost and credited to the
account “other capital funds”. The replacement cost of such assets is determined at the level of a
purchase cost.

In the case of donations provided from abroad, the replacement cost is determined at the level of
the customs value, as a statistical value indicated on the uniform statistical declaration for non-EU
countries.

The valuation of tangible fixed assets is reduced by any subsidies received.

Costs of technical appreciation of tangible fixed assets increase the purchase price of those
assets. Repairs and maintenance are expensed.

The difference in valuation on acquired assets constitutes a difference between the valuation of
the undertaking obtained by a contribution and the aggregate of the valuation of the individual
components of assets in accounting, less any liabilities assumed.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on the basis of a purchase cost and the estimated useful life of the relevant
assets. The estimated useful life is determined as follows:

Assets Number of years (from-to)
Structures 25-50
Machinery and equipment 2-12
Motor vehicles 6-8
Inventory 2-17
15

Valuation differences on acquired assets

C. Financial assets

Non-current financial assets consist mainly of ownership interests and available-for-sale securities
and shares.

Available-for-share securities and shares are securities and shares that constitute trading
securities, securities held to maturity and available-for-sale securities or ownership interests.

Shares and securities are valued at a purchase cost, which comprises the acquisition cost and
direct costs, acquisition-related, e.g. fees and commissions to be paid to brokers and stock
exchanges.

If there is a decrease in the book value of a non-current financial asset that is not revalued at the
end of the balance sheet date, the difference is understood as a temporary impairment and is
recognised as a valuation allowance.

D. Cash

Cash is made up of valuables, items and cash in bank accounts.

E. Inventory

Inventory purchased is valued at a purchase cost, using the method of the weighted arithmetic
mean. The purchase cost of inventory includes costs of its acquisition and acquisition-related
costs (costs of transport, customs duty, commission, etc.).

Work in progress (unfinished production) is valued at actual direct costs. Direct costs comprise
direct material costs, personnel costs and operating overheads. Operating overheads include
actual overheads and are scheduled on the basis of a calculation taken from the actual costs of
the preceding year.
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F. Receivables

Receivables are valued at the nominal value. The valuation of doubtful receivables is reduced by
adjustments to the detriment of costs to their realisation value.

G. Derivatives

Derivatives are initially valued at a purchase cost. Derivatives are divided into trading and hedging
derivatives. Hedging derivatives are transacted to hedge the fair value or to hedge cash flows.
For a derivative to be classified as a hedging derivate, changes in the in fair value or changes in
cash flows arising from hedging derivatives must, in whole or in part, compensate for changes in
the fair value of the item hedged or changes in cash flows arising from the item hedged, and the
Company must document and prove the existence of a hedging relationship and the high
efficiency of the hedging. All other cases include trading derivatives.

As of the balance sheet date, derivatives are revalued to fair value. Changes in fair values of
trading derivatives are recognised as financial costs or revenues.

H. Equity

The Company’s registered capital is reported in the amount recorded in a public register
maintained by the competent Municipal Court. The other capital funds are made up of cash or
non-cash contributions in excess of the registered capital value, donations into the fixed assets,
etc.

The Company has created a reserve fund. The resources thus created may only be used to cover
loss.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the Company has also created a research and
development fund and an environmental damage fund. The funds are made up of the Company’s
profits upon the decision of the General Meeting. The research and development fund is used for
financing internal research projects approved by the Board of Directors, based on prior consent
of the Supervisory Board. The environmental damage fund is intended to finance any liabilities in
excess of the reserves upon approval of the Board of Directors if the Supervisory Board gives its
prior consent.

l. Liabilities (external resources)

The Company has created statutory reserves in the sense of the Act on Provisions, and reserves
for loss and risks in the case where the title, amount and timing of performance may be
established with high probability, while maintaining factual and temporal association.

Long-term and short-term payables are reported in nominal values.

Long-term and short-term payables to credit institutions are reported in nominal values. Short-
term payables to credit institutions are understood to include the portion of long-term payables to
credit institutions that is payable within a year of the balance sheet date.

J. Lease

The Company has leased passenger cars in a form of financial and operating lease. The
Company accounts for the assets leased by recognising lease payments in expenses. Lease
payments paid in advance are accrued.
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K. Foreign exchange operations

Assets and liabilities procured in foreign currencies are valued in Czech crowns using a fixed
exchange rate determined on the last day of the previous quarter. As of the balance sheet date,
items of monetary value were measured at the exchange rate valid on 31 December and
announced by the Czech National Bank.

Realised and unrealised exchange gains and losses are reported in financial income or financial
expenses for the current year.

L. Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires the management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities as of the balance sheet date
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. The Company’s
management has made these estimates and assumptions on the basis of all the relevant
information available to it. Nevertheless, pursuant to the nature of estimates, the actual results
and outcomes in the future may differ from these estimates.

M. Recognition of revenues and expenses

Revenues and expenses are reported on an accrual basis, i.e. in a period with which they are
related in temporal and substantive terms.

Gains ensuing from long-term business commercial contracts are recognised in accounting only
after the given contract is completed and invoiced (in a manner set out in the contract concluded,
e.g. phased invoicing).

N. Income tax

The income tax payable is calculated using the valid tax rate from the accounting profit increased
or decreased by permanently or temporarily unrecognisable tax expenses and non-taxable
revenue (e.g. the creation and recognition of other reserves and adjustments, entertainment
costs, difference between accounting and tax depreciation, etc.). The Company recognises in
reserves the outstanding payable less advances paid. If advances for income tax exceed the
estimated payable tax as of the date of the financial statements, the difference is reported as a
short-term receivable.

The deferred tax payable reflects the tax impact of temporary differences between the written-
down values of assets and liabilities from the accounting perspective and the determination of the
income tax base, taking the period of realisation into account.

Top-up tax is not taken into account in the calculation of deferred tax. The position “Income tax
payable” also includes the additional tax.

The Company is a payer of top-up tax. The calculation of costs of top-up tax is based on
information available at the date of preparation of the financial statements. This constitutes an
estimate since the calculation of this tax liability contains a number of items based on the accounts
of other companies within the Group.

O. Subsidies

The Company is a beneficiary of subsidies for operating purposes. The subsidy providers include
the European Union, as well as various Ministries and governmental authorities, in particular the
Ministry of Industry and Trade and the Technology Agency of the Czech Republic. The subsidies
received are accounted for in a period with which they are related in temporal and substantive
terms, specifically in the other operating income accounts. L. PP
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The impact of events that occurred between the balance sheet date and the date of the financial
statements is reflected in the accounting records to the extent that such events have provided
additional information on the facts existing as of the balance sheet date.

If there have been any significant events between the balance sheet date and the date of the
financial statements, which events reflect any facts occurring after the balance sheet date, the
consequences of such events are delineated in the notes to the financial statements but not

recognised in accounting records.

R. Net turnover

As a result of a change in accounting legislation, the net turnover for the accounting period stated
in the profit and loss statement (ascertained for the purpose of categorisation of accounting units
and groups of accounting units) was determined differently for the periods 2024 and 2023:

» For 2023, the net turnover was determined as the sum of all revenues reported on the
relevant lines of the profit and loss statement.

» For 2024, the net turnover was determined as the sum of revenues from the sale of products,
provision of services and other operating revenues. Only selected revenues are considered
on which the accounting unit’s business model is based, with respect to the industry and the
market in which the accounting unit operates and, and with respect to the nature of the
accounting unit’s activities for customers.

If the net turnover indicator for 2023 were determined in accordance with the methodology for

2024, its value would reach CZK 1,731,858 thousand.

IV. Fixed assets

A. Intangible fixed assets (in TCZK)

Purchase cost:

Assets

Software

Other valuable rights

Advances paid

Intangible fixed assets in progress
Total 2024

Total 2023
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Opening
balance

182,770

866

4,066

187,702

184,863

Additions

9,306

9,306

5,584

Disposals

-1,435

-1,435

-2,745

Transfers

12,420

-12,420

Closing
balance

193,756

866

953

195,575

187,702
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Adjustments and accumulated amortisation:
Assets Opening Amortisation  Disposals Closing ool
balance balance
Software -168,593 6,665 1,435 173,823 19,933
Other valuable rights -239 -18 - -257 609
Advances paid - - - - 952
Intangible fixed assets in progress -168,832 -6,683 1,435 -174,080 21,495
Total 2024 -164,236 -7,341 2,745 -168,832 18,870
Valuable rights, patents and licences are amortised over the useful life, as set out in the relevant
contract.
The aggregate value of low-value intangible assets not reported in the balance sheet amounted to
CZK 11,220 thousand and CZK 11,130 thousand in purchase costs as of 31 December 2023 and 31
December 2024, respectively.
B. Tangible fixed assets (in TCZK)
Purchase price:
Assets gg;r:gg Additions Disposals Transfers izzi:fe
Land 15,647 - - - 15,647
Structures 1,156,500 2 -120 64,568 1,220,048
Machinery and equipment 1,206,373 - 9,629 69,677 1,266,421
Motor vehicles 42,107 - -228 8,277 50,156
ey 7,511 2 2 92 7,603
Other low-value tangible assets 147,067 - -5,957 10,599 151,709
Difference in valuation on acquired assets -3,657 - - - -3,657
Other tangible fixed assets 31 - - - 31
<
Advances for tangible fixed assets 25,737 19,693 -6,600 -27,477 11,353 %
Tangible fixed assets in progress 184,500 160,773 - -125,736 219,537 %
Total 2024 2,781,815 180,466 -22,534 - 2,939,748 %
Total 2023 2,663,855 150,616 -32,656 - 2,781,815 g
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Adjustments and accumulated depreciation:

Opening Closing  Adjustm Book value

Assets balance PRGN il Disposal balance ents

Land - - - - - - 15,647
Structures -593,779  -26,238 -71 120 -619,968 - 600,980
Machinery and equipment -757,909  -58,472 -1,533 9,629 -808,285 - 458,136
Motor vehicles -17,863 -1,941 -1 228 -19,577 - 30,579
Inventory -5,287 -308 - - -5,595 - 2,008
Other low-value tangible assets -114,878 -13,237 - 5,957 -122,158 - 29,552
Difference in valuation on acquired 3,657 - - - 3,657

assets

Other tangible fixed assets 31
Advances for tangible fixed assets B B - B - B 11,353
Tangible fixed assets in progress - - - - - - 219,537
Total 2024 -1,486,059 -100,196  -1,605 15,934 -1,571,926 - 1,367,822
Total 2023 -1,422,590 -95,877 -247 32,656 -1,486,059 - 1,295,756

As of 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2024, the aggregate amount of low-value tangible
assets not reported in the balance sheet totalled, in purchase cost, CZK 70,437 thousand and CZK
73,245 thousand, respectively.

Difference in valuation on acquired assets amounting to CZK 3,657 thousand was created by the
contribution of Energoprojekt Praha, s.r.o. to the Company in 2002.

The assets (buildings and land) in the purchase price of CZK 292,974 thousand and the written-
down value of CZK 120,170 thousand, and the purchase price of CZK 292,974 thousand and the
written-down value of CZK 115,393 thousand, were pledged as of 31 December 2023 and 31
December 2024, respectively, in order to secure the Framework Agreement on the Provision of
Financial Services with Komeréni banka, a.s.

The following easements are registered for the Company in the Land Register:

Cadastral area of Husinec u Reze:

1. Installation, maintenance and repairs of network lines and liquid nitrogen piping — lot nos.
241/35, 241/12 and 241/5,

2. Right to create and operate gas installations, including its accessories, the right to enter on
foot or by vehicle in connection with the creation, modification, repairs and maintenance - lot
nos. 345/49 and 345/50,
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nos. 683, 345/50 and 345/39,
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4. Easement for walking and driving to the building premises - lots st. [st. = building lot] no. 623,
st. 857, st. 898, st. 904, st. 905, st. 903, st. 922, 283/7, 283/42, 283/43,

5. Right to install, operate and maintain power lines (2 public lighting lamps) — lot no. 345/39,

6. Right to install, operate, repair and maintain the distribution system equipment, to carry out its
renewal, replacement and modernisation - lot no. 313/125,

7. Right to install, operate, repair and maintain the distribution system equipment, to carry out its
renewal, replacement and modernisation - lot st. no. 933.

Cadastral area of Brno:

8. Easement for the location of the public lighting, access for repair purposes of the cadastral area
of Brno — lot nos. 380/39, 380/45.

9. Easement for walking, passage through the common areas of building, cadastral area of Brno
— lot nos. 380/37, 380/38, 380/39, 380/41, 380/42, 380/45 (units nos. 971/1 to 971/10).

Cadastral area of Plzen:

10. Easement for the location and operation of electrical distribution equipment, cadastral area of
Plzen — lot no. 9083.

C. Non-current financial assets (in TCZK)

Overview of movement of non-current financial assets:

Assets 3I3f|1a2r.1;:gza2t 3I3f|1a2r.1;:gza; Additions Disposals 3‘3::?;; ;:
Shares — controlled or controlling entities 831,538 864,281 - - 864,281
Iéﬁggielg and loans — controlled or controlling 31,786 0 120,000 -120,000 0
Shares — significant influence 1,000 1,000 - - 1,000
Other non-current securities and shares 3 3 - - 3
Adjustments - -190,100 -296,652 - -486,752
Total 864,328 675,184 -176,652 -120,000 378,532

The financial assets are valued at a purchase cost. In 2024, an overdraft facility in the amount
of CZK 120 million was provided to SKODA PRAHA a.s.
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Overview of shares in joint-stock companies [a.s.] in CZK:

Name and legal form Number of shares Value in CZK
Chemoprojekt, a.s. 3 3300
Vitkovice, a.s. 3 32

Controlled and managed companies and companies under significant influence as of 31
December 2024 (in TCZK):

Centrum Vyzkumny a SKODA  RadioMedic South Bohemian
Name and legal form VV)"ZkumU zku3ebni ustav PRAHA s-r-o. Nuclear Park,
Rezs.ro. Plzen L s.r.o.
s.r.0.
) ] Hlavni :130, Tylova 1581/46  Duhova 1444/2, Rez 289, Lipova 1789/9,
Registered office ReZ  30100Plzei  Michle, 140 00 250 68 370 05 Ceské
250 68 Husinec Prague 4 Husinec Buds&jovice 2
Share in % 100 100 100 100 20
Total assets 868,219 222,108 1,234,544 25,808 4,731
Equity 389,249 130,018 159,322 16,042 4,711
REpIEREIE @EpEl Ene 2] 422,984 70,771 370,000 52,310 5,000
funds £ £ t 3 t
Funds from profit 722 3,577 15 0 0
Prior period retained profit (loss) -39,959 51,729 -133,723 -43,559 -232
Current reporting period profit
5,502 3,941 -76,970 7,291 -57
(loss)
Plierise s i 269,396 75,000 487,143 32,742 1,000
shares/shareholdings
N IS 305,277 35,771 370,000 52,000 1,000
shares/shareholdings
Adjustments - - -486,752 - -
il usle] 374,443 117,529 391 N/A N/A

shares/shareholdings

Dividends - - - - -
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Controlled and managed companies and companies under significant influence as of 31 December

2023 (in TCZK):

Name and legal form

Registered office

Share in %
Total assets

Equity

Registered capital and capital
funds

Funds from profit

Prior period retained profit (loss)

Current reporting period profit
(loss)

Purchase price of
shares/shareholdings

Nominal value of
shares/shareholdings

Adjustments

Intrinsic value of
shares/shareholdings

Dividends

Centrum vyzkumu
ReZ s.r.o.

Hlavni 130, Rez,
250 68 Husinec

100

804,986

383,747

422,984

722

42,437

2,477

269,396

305,277

374,443

Vyzkumny
a zkuSebni ustav
Plzen s.r.o.

Tylova 1581/46
301 00 Plzefi

100

207,547

126,719

70,771

3,577

44,223

8,148

75,000

35,771

117,529

SKODA PRAHA RadioMedic s.r.o.

a.s.

Duhova 1444/2,
Michle, 140 00
Prague 4

100

809,048

236,292

370,000

15

-135,617

1,894

487,143

370,000

-190,100

287,454

Rez 289,
250 68
Husinec

100

24,191

8,767

52,310

-43,612

69

32,742

52,000

N/A

South Bohemian
Nuclear Park,

S.r.o.

Lipova 1789/9,
370 05 Ceské
Budéjovice 2

20

4,750

4,750

5,000

-234

1,000

1,000

N/A

Financial details of the above companies regarding 2023 and 2024 were obtained from unaudited
financial statements of the individual companies.
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V. Inventory

The valuation of work in progress is reduced to a selling price through the account of adjustments,
which is shown in the correction column in the accompanying balance sheet. The adjustment was
determined by the management based on its assessment of the profitability of projects in progress
(see item VIL.).

VI. Receivables

Adjustments were created in 2023 and 2024 for unpaid receivables considered as doubtful, on
the basis of an analysis of individual receivables and the age of their balances (see item VII).

As of 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2024, receivables overdue for more than 365 days
amounted to CZK 11,997 thousand and CZK 5,582 thousand, respectively.

Due to uncollectibility, rejection of bankruptcy and settlement or non-performance of receivables
in bankruptcy proceedings, the Company has written off receivables in the amount of CZK 28,040
thousand and CZK 424 thousand in 2023 and 2024, respectively.

Long-term trade receivables as of 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2024 consist mainly of
retainage.

For receivables from related entities, see item XX.

VIl. Adjustments

Adjustments entail a temporary devaluation of assets (specified in items 1V, V and VI).

Changes in adjustment accounts (in TCZK):

Adjustments to: Balance at Creation Recognition Balance at Creation Recognition  Balance at
31.12. of of 31.12. of of 31.12.
2022 adjustment adjustment 2023 adjustment adjustment 2024

Tangible fixed assets

Non-current financial assets 190,100 = 190,100 296,652 = 486,752
Production in progress 1,309 - -1,295 14 3,949 - 3,963
Receivables - statutory 5,793 484 -3,908 2,369 - -484 1,885

62,962 5,371 -44.634 23,699 1,580 -18,844 6,435

Receivables - other

Statutory adjustments are created in accordance with the Act on Reserves and are tax eligible.

An adjustment of CZK 297 million was created for the investment in SKODA PRAHA, a.s. based
on a forecast of the Company’s future cash flows so that the carrying amount corresponds to the
present value of expected future cash flows, taking into account net debt.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

1 10 WWW.Ujv.CzZ


http://www.ujv.cz/

Verejné / Pﬁglic

U.ng
O~

VIll. Current financial assets and cash

As of 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2024, the Company had the following account balances,
subject to restricted use:

- CZK 115,927 thousand in 2023 and CZK 131,104 thousand in 2024, kept with Ceska
spofitelna, a. s.

The escrow accounts kept with Ceska spofitelna, a.s. relate to the statutory creation of a provision
for decommissioning of nuclear facilities.

The Company has the total of four bank overdraft accounts, enabling the Company to draw loans up
to the total amount of CZK 100,000 thousand. The Company drew no loans as of 31 December 2023
and 31 December 2024.

IX. Accrued assets

Deferred expenses primarily include accruals for property insurance, service contracts, membership
fees, licence fees and rents and are expensed in the period to which they are related in temporal and
substantive terms.

X. Equity
Overview of changes in equity (in TCZK):

Valuation
Other differences Other  Statutory  Prior period Clbietl

Reg:{t}e&;ﬁd capital Ifrom reserve  and other retained p;?izzrt;;rr]gfit
revaluation in A
funds sorporate funds funds profit (loss)

transformations

Balance at 524,139 85,149 27,367 104,828 246,209 1,135,796 92,364 2,215,852
01.01.2022

Total

Distribution of last - - - - - 92,364 -92,364 -
year's profit

Allocation to social - - - - -20 - - -20
fund

Use of research and

development fund - = = - -14,292 14,292 - =
and environmental

burden removal

fund

) - - - - - - -144,209 -144,209
Current reporting

period profit (loss)
Balance

524,139 85,149 27,367 104,828 231,898 1,242,452 -144,209 2,071,624
at 31.12.2023
Distribution of last - - - - - -144,209 144,209 -
year's profit

Allocation to social - - - - -25 - - -25
fund

Use of research and

development fund > o - - -5,575 5,575 - °
and environmental

burden removal

fund

Current reporting
period profit (loss)

Balance at 524,139 85,149 27,367 104,828 226,298 1,103,818 -233,599 1,838,000 :
31.12.2024 P

- = o = - - -233,599 -233,599
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The Company’s registered capital consists of dematerialised registered shares, fully subscribed
and paid up, with the nominal value of CZK 1,000.00 in the number of 524,139 shares.

Other capital funds comprise cash and non-cash donations.

Other reserve funds are intended to cover the Company’s loss, if any. The statutory and other
funds serve for covering costs incurred during the performance of scientific and research tasks
and environmental damage in excess of the reserves. Based on the internal rules for research
project management, the amounts of CZK 14,180 thousand and CZK 5,531 thousand were drawn
from the research and development fund in 2023 and 2024, respectively. The amounts of CZK
112 thousand and CZK 44 thousand were drawn from the environmental burden fund in 2023 and
2024, respectively.

Upon the decisions of the General Meetings held on 23 June 2023 and 21 June 2024, the above-
mentioned distribution of the profit for 2022 and 2023 was approved. The General Meeting
decided against payment of dividends from the profit of 2022 and 2023. The Company reported
loss for the year 2024.

Xl. Reserves

Changes in reserves (in TCZK):

Reserves Balance at Creation of ~ Recognition of Balance at Creation of ~ Recognition of  Bajance at
31.12.2022 reserves reserves 31.12.2023 reserves reserves 31.12.2024

Reserve for income tax

Statutory —
decommissioning of
nuclear facilities

133,007 11,153 - 144,160 29,946 - 174,106

Statutory — repairs of - - - - - - -
tangible assets

Provision for environ. 224,874 108,909 -14,917 318,866 9,534 -59,286 269,114
damage removal

Other 187,373 43,774 -42,781 188,366 133,936 -41,175 281,126

Total 545,254 163,836 -57,698 651,392 173,416 -100,461 724,346

As prescribed by the Atomic Act, the statutory reserve was created for the purpose of
decommissioning of nuclear installations. The other reserves were created with the aim of
covering future costs of projects, disposal of environmental burdens, court disputes, remuneration
and untaken leave and radioactive waste treatment.

Xll. Short-term payables

As of 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2024, the Company’s short-term payables overdue
for more than 90 days amounted to CZK 5 thousand and CZK 0 thousand, respectively.

As of 31 December 2024, the Company had liabilities with a maturity of more than 5 years in the
amount of CZK 2,636 thousand. Payables consist mainly of retainage.

As of 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2024, the Company reported payable payables in
terms of social and health security in the amounts of CZK 19,522 thousand and CZK 22,210
thousand, respectively.
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Estimated accrued expenses include, in particular, estimates for remuneration and social and
health insurance for such remuneration, insurance and supplies that have not yet been

invoiced.

Payables to related entities (see item XX.).

Xlll. Payables to credit institutions

The Company reports no payables to credit institutions.

XIV. Accrued liabilities items

Deferred revenues include invoicing of services and are recognised in the revenues of the

period to which they relate in substantive and temporal terms.

XV. Income tax

Based on preliminary calculations, the tax has been assessed as follows (in TCZK):

Profit before tax
Deductible item for research and development
Non-taxable revenues

Differences between book and tax depreciation

Creation/release of adjustments

Creation/release of reserves

Creation/release of non-tax deductible estimated item
Other social costs

Other non-tax deductible costs

Taxable income
Income tax rate
Tax

Tax allowance

Adjustment of tax previous years

Payable tax

UJV Rez, a. s.

2023

-125,976

-5,351

-102

-10,418

149,542

94,982

16,716

8,454

40,548

168,395

19%

31,995

-50

167

32,112
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2024

-215,213

-3,638
1,157
283,728
43,009
11,874
8,623
10,874
116,666
21%
24,500
64

485

24,921
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Deferred tax was calculated as follows (in TCZK):

2023 2024
) Deferred tax Deferred tax Deferred tax Deferred tax
Deferred tax items . .
receivable payable receivable payable
Difference between the book and tax residual cost of - 91,244 - 88,872
fixed assets
Other temporary differences: i i i i
. 4,893 - 1,266 -
Adjustments to receivables
. . . 3 = 832 -
Adjustments to inventories
Adjustments to fixed assets i i i i
106,484 - 115,551 -
Reserves
. . 25,577 - 23,080 -
Estimated items
136,957 91,244 140,729 88,872
Total
45,713 - 51,857 -
Net

The Company is a payer of top-up tax. Top-up tax was not taken into account in the calculation
of deferred tax, and in 2024 the Company had no tax expenses linked to top-up tax.

XVI. Assets and liabilities not recognised in balance sheet

As of 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2024, the Company had assets and liabilities not
reported in the balance sheet. These include off-balance sheet assets and vehicle leases.

The Company has cars leased in a form of operating lease only.

The assets leased by the Company in a form of operating lease as of 31 December 2023 and 31
December 2024 (in TCZK):

o y Amount of rent Amount of rent Purchase cost with
Description Dates/conditions in 2023 in 2024 the owner
Passenger cars 105 cars 11,344 13,093 47,561
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Guarantees in favour of creditors as of 31 December 2024:
Payable Balance in 2024  Contracting party
Bank guarantee CZK 1,500,000 GasNet, s.r.o.
Bank guarantee USD 109,831.60 The Egyptian Nuclear and Radiological Regulatory Authority (Egypt)
Bank guarantee EUR 3,700  Korea Hydro & Nuclear Power Co., LTD
Bank guarantee EUR 44,765 Nuclear and Radiological Regulatory Commission (Saudi Arabia)
Bank guarantee EUR 34,797 State Enterprise National Nuclear Energy Generating Company (Ukraine)
Guarantees in favour of creditors as of 31 December 2023:
Payable Balance in 2023  Contracting Party
Bank guarantee CZK 1,500,000 GasNet, s.r.o.
Bank guarantee USD 109,831.60 The Egyptian Nuclear and Radiological Regulatory Authority (Egypt)
Bank guarantee EUR 25,000 State Enterprise Ignalina Nuclear Power Plant (Lithuania)
Bank guarantee EUR 44,765 Nuclear and Radiological Regulatory Commission (Saudi Arabia)
Bank guarantee EUR 34,797 State Enterprise National Nuclear Energy Generating Company (Ukraine)
Bank guarantee CZK 2,935,000 CEZ, a.s.
The Company has in place a Contract of Guarantee to Secure a Debt of the subsidiary business
corporation Centrum vyzkumu Rez s.r.o. The debt constitutes this company’s obligations arising
from the Loan Agreement up to the total amount as shown in the following table:
Total . Principal as of
D 1t
Contract dated Sralise] Instalment Description KB number Instalments 31.12.2024
fuel
01.02.2022 2,715,000 EUR 90,500 ue 99 032 486 121 31.07.23 - 31.12.25 1,194,000 <
12/22 %
fuel i
26.06.2023 2,997,084 EUR 103,284 10/23 99 039 852 003 01.01.26 — 31.05.28 * 1,497,084 Q
i
fuel X
31.10.2024 2,997,000 EUR 99,900 10/24 99 048 649 816 31.07.26 — 31.12.28 2,997,000 2
Z
UJV Rez, a. s.
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The Company has in place a Contract of Guarantee to Secure a Debt of its subsidiary, Centrum
vyzkumu Rez s.r.o. The debt consists of the Company’s liabilities arising from the Loan Contract
up to the total amount specified in the following table:

Contract Description Total principal RB number Instalments . Monthly Principal as of
dated instalment 31.12.2024
investment SuU/0001/ 31.01.2025 -
24.07.2024 CZK 15,000,000 CZK 250,000 CZK 15,000,000
CzZK NCINV/02/47718684 31.12.2029
investment Su/0001/ 31.12.2023 -
20.12.2022 EUR 770,000 EUR 12,833 EUR 603,171
EUR NCINV/01/47718684 30.11.2028
XVIl. Revenues and expenses
Breakdown of the Company’s revenue from ordinary activities (in TCZK):
2023 2024
Revenue by divisions/activities
Domestic Foreign Domestic Foreign
Integrity and technical engineering 499,209 50,277 493,475 64,469
ENERGOPROJEKT PRAHA 259,121 50,020 337,579 63,285
Nuclear safety and reliability 318,499 18,749 290,184 18,302
Radioactive waste and decommissioning 96,938 39,643 69,437 86,303
Radiopharmaceuticals 186,903 5,076 228,168 4,330
Shared services 125,503 - 127,005 =
Other services 74,219 8,811 70,308 33,187
Total revenue 1,560,392 172,576 1,616,156 269,876

Other operating revenue considered, the Company recognises subsidies for operating purposes,
received from the state budget and the EU in the amount of CZK 97,540 thousand in 2023, and
CZK 92,345 thousand in 2024, included in the Table above.

Revenue includes revenue from the sale of products and services and other operating income.
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Breakdown of the Company’s costs_production consumption (in TCZK):

Costs

Material consumption
Energy consumption

Fuel consumption
Services_repairs
Services_travel expenses
Entertainment costs
Services_ subcontracting
Services_IT
Services_outsourcing
Services_rent
Services_promotion, marketing_
Services_other

Total costs

XVIIl. Personnel costs

Breakdown of personnel costs (in TCZK):

Total

Total recalculated
headcount 705
Salaries and
bonuses to
members of

q 615,075
Company’s
statutory bodies
Social security and
health insurance 204,028
Other costs 17,791

Total personnel costs 836,894

Members of

manag.,
admin.
bodies

14

18,172

4,353

660

23,185

of which
Board of
Directors

15,914

3,590

660

20,164

of which

Supervisory  Total
Board

9 740

2,258 664,958

763 221,053

- 18,204

3,021 904,215

2023

63,013
80,889

3,750
29,574
15,613

5,615

271,588

44,795
24,485
21,312
28,326

74,882

663,842

2024

Members of of which

manag.,
admin.
bodies

13

17,646

4,060

928

22,634

Board of
Directors

15,418

3,307

928

19,653
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2024

60,889
65,468
3,703
45,094
15,900
5,916
305,197
50,506
26,903
23,733
22,480
93,557

719,346

of which
Supervisory
Board

2,228

753

2,981
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Members of management, control and administrative bodies include members of the Board of

Directors and the Supervisory Board.
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XIX. Information on related entities

In 2023 and 2024 members of statutory and supervisory bodies and management staff received
no loans, guarantees granted, advance payments or other benefits, and they own no shares in
the Company.

The only advantages for the members of the statutory bodies consist in the option to use the cars
for private purposes.

The Company provides services to related entities as part of its ordinary business activities. Sale
transactions to selected related entities in 2023 and 2024 (in TCZK):

Related entity 2023 2024
CEZ, as. 885,000 969,246
Slovenské elektrarne, a.s. 35,193 38,649
Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.o. 146,302 132,460
SKODA JS a.s. 8,182 10,682
CEZ ENERGOSERVIS spol. s r.o. 16,689 17,636
SKODA PRAHA a.s. 15,312 20,739
CEZ ICT Services, a.s. 1,500 1,250
Elektrarna Dukovany Il, a. s. 37,828 24,721
Elektrarna Temelin Il, a. s. 1,757 -

CEZESL, s.r.o. 10,091 12,284
Vyzkumny a zkuSebni Ustav Plzen s.r.o. 4,049 4,597
CEZ Energo, s.r.0. 22,852 18,238
Other 3,780 5,355
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Receivables from selected related entities as of 31 December (in TCZK):

Related entity

CEZ, as.

Slovenské elektrarne, a.s.
Elektrarna Dukovany Il, a. s.
SKODA JS a.s.

CEZ ENERGOSERVIS spol. s r.0.
CEZ Energo, s.r.0.

CEZ ICT Services, a. s.

Vyzkumny a zkuSebni Ustav Plzen s.r.o.

Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.o.
SKODA PRAHA a.s.

Other

2023

short-term

440,551
13,493
9,272
3,017
5,870
3,541
1,513
678
6,051
2,704

920

long-term

145

2024

short-term

536,375
10,500
13,588

6,838
13,830
2,090
1,513
665
1,652
8,124

2,948
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Loans and credits provided to controlled or controlling companies or companies under significant

influence as of 31 December (in TCZK): none.

Interest revenue on loans provided reached the amounts of CZK 777 thousand and CZK 2,259

thousand in 2023 and 2024, respectively.

The Company purchases products and avails of services rendered by related entities in the

ordinary course of business

Purchases from selected related entities in 2023 and 2024 (in TCZK):

Related entity

Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.o.
CEZ ESCO, a.s.

SKODA JS a.s.

CEZ Energo, s.r.0.

CEZ ICT Services, a. s.

CEZ, a.s.

Vyzkumny a zkuSebni Ustav Plzen s.r.o.

CEZESL, s.r.o.
SKODA PRAHA a.s.

Other

UJV Rez, a. s.

2023

87,420
65,325
32,815
9,385
6,669
21,217
1,100
14,495
67,021

1,290

2024

114,614
50,556
18,429
8,240
6,942
19,851
1,443
15,122

101,876

5,829
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Payables to selected related entities as of 31 December (in TCZK):

2023 2024
Related entity short-term long-term short-term long-term
Centrum vyzkumu Rez s.r.o. 57,085 - 30,136 -
SKODA JS a.s. 15,906 - 8,527 -
Vyzkumny a zkuSebni Ustav Plzen s.r.o. 104 - 509 -
Ustav aplikované mechaniky Brno, s.r.o. - - - -
CEZ ESCO, a.s. 9,479 - 9,861 -
CEZ a.s. 6,451 - 2,365 -
CEZ ICT Services, a. s. 1,052 - 733 -
SKODA PRAHA a.s. 21,129 - 27,269 -
Other 2,384 - 2,044 -

Purchases of assets from related entities amounted to CZK 56,537 thousand and CZK 81,968
thousand in 2023 and 2024, respectively.

XX. Significant profit or loss items

Other operating revenue comprise, in particular, subsidies received (see item XVIII), or
compensation received from insurance companies.

Other operating expenses consist mainly of property insurance.

Other financial expenses and revenues are primarily made of realised and unrealised exchange
rate loss and profit.

XXIl. Significant post-balance sheet events

« With effect from 01 January 2025, Ing. Jan Wandrol was elected the fifth Member of the
Board of Directors by the General Meeting.

* On 24 February 2025, EN]ERGQPROJEKT PRAHA s.r.o. was formed, with its sole member
(100% ownership) being UJV Rez, a. s.; the contribution to the registered capital stands at
CZK 1,000 thousand.

* On 16 April 2025, the transfer of a part of business to the newly formed subsidiary
ENERGOPROJEKT PRAHA s.r.o. was approved by the General Meeting.

* On 16 April 2025, the increase in the registered capital to the amount of CZK 812,415,450
was approved by the General Meeting.
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Approved on 06 May 2025

Signature of statutory body:

L v

Ing. Martin Rus&ak, CSc., MBA
Chair of the Board of Directors

Signature of statutory body:

Ing. Tomas Novotny
Member of the Board of
Directors
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Person responsible for
financial statements:

%«MW%/ :

Ivana KuS$nirova
Head, Financial Section
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Deloitte.

Churchill |

Italska 2581/67

120 00 Prague 2 - Vinohrady
Czech Republic

Tel.: +420 246 042 500
DeloitteCZ@deloitteCE.com
www.deloitte.cz

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Registered in the Municipal Court

For shareholders of in Prague, Section C,

- v Insert 24349

UJV Rez, a.s Company ID No.: 49620592
, d.S.

Tax ID No.: CZ49620592

Registered office: Hlavni 130, ReZ, 250 68 Husinec

Auditor’s opinion

We have audited the enclosed financial statements of UJV Re, a.s. (hereinafter also as the “Company”), prepared on the
basis of Czech accounting regulations, and consisting of the balance sheet as of 31 December 2024, the profit and loss
statement, the statement of changes in equity and the cash flow statement for the year ending on the above date, and
the notes to these financial statements, including material information on the accounting methods that have been
applied.

In our opinion, the financial statements provide a true and fair view of the financial position of UJV Re?, a.s. as of 31
December 2024 and of financial performance and cash flow for the year ending on the above date, in compliance with
the Czech accounting regulations.

Basis for the opinion

We have conducted the audit in compliance with the Act on Auditors and auditing standards of the Chamber of Auditors
of the Czech Republic, i.e. International Auditing Standards (ISA), amended or altered by related applicatory clauses as
necessary. Our responsibility laid down in these standards is described in more detail in the section Auditor’s
responsibility for the audit of financial statements. Pursuant to the Act on Auditors and the Code of Ethics adopted by
the Chamber of Auditors of the Czech Republic, we are independent of the Company and have met all other ethical
obligations prescribed in the aforementioned standards. We believe that the evidentiary information we have obtained
provides a sufficient and suitable basis for us to express our opinion.

Supplemental information provided in the Annual Report

Pursuant to Section 2(b) of the Act on Auditors, supplemental information constitutes the information provided in the Annual
Report outside the scope of the financial statements and our Auditor’s Report. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible
for such information.

Our opinion of the financial statements does not address the supplemental information. However, in the scope of our
responsibilities related to the verification of the financial statements, we are obliged to acquaint ourselves with the
supplemental information and consider whether there is a material inconsistency between the supplemental information and
the financial statements or our information on the accounting entity obtained in the course of verification of the financial
statements, or whether this information appears materially incorrect. In addition, we make an assessment whether
supplemental information was processed in compliance with applicable legal regulations in all material aspects. This
consideration is understood as evaluation whether supplemental information complies with requirements of legal regulations
imposed on formal essentials and the procedure of processing of supplemental information in the context of materiality, i.e. if
a failure, if any, to comply with these requirements could affect the judgment made on the basis of the supplemental
information.

On the basis of the procedures conducted, inasmuch as we are able to evaluate the supplemental information, we hereby state
that:

e The supplemental information that depicts facts constituting the subject of presentation in the financial statements is in
compliance with the financial statements in all material aspects.
e The supplemental information was prepared in accordance with legal regulations.

Deloitte refers to one or more companies in the global network of member companies Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited (DTTL) and their
subsidiaries and affiliates (collectively as the “Deloitte organisations”). DTTL (also referred to as “Deloitte Global”) and each of its member
companies and their affiliates is a separate and independent legal entity that is not entitled to bind or undertake obligations on behalf of any of
these member companies and their affiliates in relation to third parties. DTTL and each member company and affiliate is liable only for its own acts
or omissions, not for any acts or omissions of any other member company or affiliate. DTTL does not provide services to clients. For more

information is available at www.deloitte.com/about
04A6ACDA12AD184EE3EECI46D943E207
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Furthermore, we are obliged to state whether, on the basis of our knowledge and awareness of the Company we obtained
during the audit, the supplemental information is free from material factual misstatements. In the framework of the above
procedures, the supplemental information obtained by us was found to contain no material factual misstatements.

Responsibility of the Company’s Board of Directors and Supervisory Board for financial statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that reflect a true and fair
view in compliance with Czech accounting standards, and for the internal control system considered by the Board of
Directors as necessary for the preparation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatements caused
by fraud or error.

When preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is obliged to assess whether the Company is a going
concern, and if relevant, to describe any matters in the notes to the financial statements in relation to the Company’s
going concern status and the application of the going-concern prerequisite upon the preparation of the financial
statements, except when the Board of Directors plans to dissolve the Company or to discontinue its activities, or, as the
case may be, when the Board of Directors has no other real choice but to do so.

The Supervisory Board is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibility for auditing financial statements

Our objective is to achieve a level of reasonable certainty that the financial statements are free from material misstatements
caused by fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report containing our opinion. A reasonable level of certainty represents a
high degree of certainty, which, however, does not guarantee that an audit conducted in conformity with the above standards
will in all cases reveal possible existing material misstatements in the financial statements. Misstatements may emerge as a
consequence of fraud or error and are considered material if it may be assumed realistically that these misstatements,
individually or as a whole, may influence economic decisions adopted by users of the financial statements on the basis of the
same.

When conducting an audit in conformity with the above-mentioned standards, our obligation is to use our professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. Our other obligations are as follows:

e to identify and assess risks of material misstatements of the financial statements caused by fraud or error, to design and
perform audit procedures responding to such risk and to obtain adequate and suitable evidentiary information to enable
us to express our opinion. The risk that we will fail to uncover a material misstatement caused by fraud is higher than the
risk of failing to uncover a material misstatement caused by error since fraud may consist in clandestine agreements
(collusion), falsification, intentional omissions, incorrect statements or circumvention of internal controls.

e To make ourselves acquainted with the Company’s internal control system relevant for the audit to an extent enabling us
to design audit procedures suitable with respect to the given circumstances, though our objective is not to express an
opinion as to the efficacy of the Company’s internal control system.

e To assess the suitability of the accounting principles applied, reasonability of the accounting estimates performed, and the
information provided in this connection by the Company’s Board of Directors in the notes to the financial statements.

e To assess the suitability of the application of a going-concern prerequisite for the preparation of the financial statements
by the Company’s Board of Directors, and whether - with respect to the evidentiary information gathered - there exists a
material uncertainty ensuing from events or conditions that might considerably question the Company’s ability of going
concern. In case our conclusion is that there does exist such material uncertainty, in our report, we are obliged to point out
such information contained in this connection in the notes to the financial statements, and unless such information is
adequate, we must express a modified opinion. Our conclusions related to the Company’s ability of going concern are
based on the evidentiary information obtained by us until the date of our report. Nonetheless, the Company may lose the
ability of going concern due to future events or conditions.

e  to assess the overall presentation, organisation and content of the financial statements, including the notes, and whether
the financial statements present underlying transactions and events in a matter that provides a true and fair view.

Our obligation is to inform the Board of Directors, inter alia, of the planned scope and timing of the audit as well as of any
important findings ascertained by us during the audit, including any substantial shortcomings in the internal control system.

In Prague, on 06 May 2025

Auditing company: Statutory auditor:
Deloitte Audit s.r.o. Jiti Sauer
Registration no. 079 Registration no. 2301
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Solemn declaration
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The Board of Directors and the compilers of the Annual Report declare that the details provided
in the Annual Report are consistent with the actual state of affairs, and no substantial
circumstances that might affect the accurate and correct assessment of the company have been

omitted.

In Rez, on 06 May 2025

7 %4

Ing. Martin Rus¢ak, CSc., MBA
Chair of the Board of Directors
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Ing. Patrik Spatzal, MBA

Chair of the Board of Directors

Ing. Jan Wandrol
Member of the Board of Directors

Ing. Tomas Novotny
Member of the Board of Directors

Ing. Petr Mach
Member of the Board of Directors
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